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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of New Western Group
Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of New Western Group
Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT

The global economic environment was full of uncertainties in 2018 as a trade
war in the form of an ongoing dialogue between China and the United States
of America continued, which affected the products imports and exports of
both nations as well as their economic growth. Furthermore, the Federal
Reserve recently signalled that its interest rate hike cycle may be ending
sooner than expected. The volatilities of the above changes may weaken the
worldwide economic growth in 2019.

In face of the unfavorable market environment in integrated circuit (“IC”")
segment, the Group recorded a decrease in its overall revenue, driven by
the decrease in the provision of tailor-made ASIC services and products.
The Group is going to perform more research and development activities to
diversify and improve its IC products. A number of new ICs were introduced
in 2018 to enrich our portfolio, especially in ASIC power management IC and
ASIC Motor Driver IC. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 20 new IC
models under development and customer evaluation, but 1 IC model had
been terminated. Certain customers took prudent view in project investment
and extended the process of evaluation, acceptance and modification, and
the completion time of development was prolonged as a resullt.

In view of the market competition of the money lending business which
remains fierce, our loans receivables decreased from approximately
HK$135.4 million in December 2017 to approximately HK$98.6 million in
December 2018. Looking forward, the Group will continue to focus on high
net worth customers to minimize the overall credit risk.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
IFRBEE (B

As a result of the continuing business expansion and development of
property management business in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), the Group had recorded a profit for 2018. We would like to share
more detail of the Group’s performance, financial position and other
information for the year 2018 with shareholders in the following section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and all board committees have effectively supported the Board
in carrying out its responsibilities. The Board will persist to explore new
business opportunity to maximize the long term interest for the shareholders
as a whole.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere thanks to the
valuable contribution from our management team. | would also like to
express my gratitude to all staff for their hard work in the execution of the
Group’s strategies and operations during the past year. Last but not least, |
wish to thank all shareholders, customers, suppliers, business partners and
bankers for their continuous support and confidence in the Group.

Mr. Zhang Qing

Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the principal activities of the
Group are: (1) the provision of IC solutions and the design, development and
sales of ICs; (2) money lending business in Hong Kong through the provision
of unsecured and secured loans to customers, including individuals and
corporations under the provisions of the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and (3) the provision of investment and
planning consulting service, real estate agent, property management services
and car parking management services in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing operations

IC Business

The Group sells IC under its own brand name “MiniLogic” and provides
application specific IC service (the “ASIC Service”) in the design and
development of tailor-made IC to its customers. The Group also provides
tailor-made IC solutions and sells tailor-made ICs to customers under the
ASIC Service business section (the “ASIC Section”); and independently
develops and sells generically-applicable ICs for sale in the market under the
MiniLogic Brand IC business section (the “Standard IC Section”).

Over the past year, the research and development (the “R&D”) team
completed and launched 6 new models included 1 Standard LCD Diriver IC,
2 ASIC Electronic Cigarette ICs, 2 ASIC Power Management ICs and 1 ASIC
DVD Player IC.

The R&D team also deployed 8 more new IC models but terminated 1 during
the year. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 20 new IC models under
development and customer evaluation. The completion of the development
of several new IC models has been extended as the process was prolonged
due to customer evaluation, acceptance and modification work. Developing
IC products with suitable technology that appeal to the market is essential for
the growth of IC business. This can also expand the range of the IC products
and maintain the competitiveness of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEEBNW RN (B

ASIC Section

Under the ASIC Section, the major products are DVD Player ICs, Power
Management ICs and Electronic Cigarette ICs. 5 new IC models were
launched in 2018. Due to the stagnant demand in the IC industry, revenue
and margin from DVD Player ICs and Power Management ICs decreased
when compared to the same period last year. Revenue from the ASIC
products decreased from approximately HK$14.3 million for the year of 2017
to approximately HK$9.8 million for the year of 2018.

At the same time, revenue from the provision of ASIC Service significantly
increased from approximately HK$1.4 million in 2017 to approximately
HK$2.6 million in 2018. Due to the decrease in revenue from the ASIC
products, particularly in DVD Player ICs and Power Management ICs, the
overall revenue from the ASIC Section dropped by 21.0% from approximately
HK$15.7 million in 2017 to approximately HK$12.4 million in 2018.

Standard IC Section

Under the Standard IC Section, the major products are LCD Driver ICs
for instrument panel and Power Management ICs. 1 new IC model was
launched in 2018. In view of the improvement in the market sentiment for the
LCD Diriver ICs, there was an increase in overall revenue for the year of 2018.
Accordingly, the overall revenue from the Standard IC Section increased by
7.7% from approximately HK$3.9 million in 2017 to approximately HK$4.2
million in 2018.

Money Lending Business

The Group engages in the money lending business, such as providing
secured and unsecured loans to customers comprising individuals and
corporations to earn interest income. As the market competition remained
fierce and challenging, the Group’s loans receivables which are repayable
according to repayment schedules with contractual maturity ranging from 3
months to 12 years, decreased from approximately HK$135.4 million as at
31 December 2017 to approximately HK$98.6 million as at 31 December
2018, which are repayable according to repayment schedules with
contractual maturity ranging from 6 months to 42 months. Accordingly, the
revenue increased by 3.5% from approximately HK$19.7 million in 2017 to
approximately HK$20.4 million in 2018.

Property Management Business in the PRC
The Group has entered into the property management industry in the PRC
since 20 January 2017 and provides a broad range of property management
services to property developers and property owners.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Property Management Services
Through provision of property management services to property owners
and residents such as predelivery services, move-in assistance services,
security, cleaning, gardening, repair and maintenance, the revenue of this
section increased by 17.4% from approximately HK$24.7 million in 2017 to
approximately HK$29.0 million in 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group managed residential and
non-residential properties with an aggregate contracted gross floor area
(“GFA”) of approximately 57,000 square meters and 155,000 square meters
respectively. The total contracted GFA means the sum of revenue-bearing
GFA, undelivered GFA and common area GFA.

Revenue-bearing GFA represented contracted GFA in relation to which the
collection of property management fees has started when a property has
been delivered or is ready to be delivered. For properties that have been
delivered or are ready to be delivered after delivery notices have been given
to the first group of property owners in such properties, property developers
would pay property management fees on unsold units until such units are
sold.

Undelivered GFA means contracted GFA in relation to which the collection of
property management fees has not started because the relevant property is
not ready to be delivered.

Common area GFA includes pathways, garden, parking lots, and
advertisement bulletin boards.

Property Real Estate Agency Services

The property management team provides property management and real
estate agency services in respect of commercial and residential buildings
in the PRC. The revenue of this section decreased by 64.1% from
approximately HK$3.9 million in 2017 to approximately HK$1.4 million in
2018.

Property Consulting Services

The property management team also provides property management
consultancy services to other property management companies such as
standardised operation, cost control and consultation. The revenue of this
section was approximately HK$8.8 million in 2018, similar to that of the
previous year of approximately HK$8.0 million in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEEBNW RN (B

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Below is an analysis of our key financial indicators including, but not limited
to revenue, cost of sales and services, gross profit and cost to income ratio,
which reflected the financial position of the business.

Revenue, Cost of Sales and Services and Gross
Profit

The total revenue of the Group from continuing operations increased by
0.5% from approximately HK$75.9 million in 2017 to approximately HK$76.3
million in 2018. The increase was mainly due to the revenue generated from
the property management business in the PRC.

Cost of sales and services of the Group from continuing operations related
to the IC and the property management business in the PRC decreased by
7.3% from approximately HK$28.5 million in 2017 to approximately HK$26.4
million in 2018.

The gross profit of the ASIC Section from continuing operations increased
by 14.2% from approximately HK$4.2 million in 2017 to approximately
HK$4.8 million in 2018, and gross profit margin of the ASIC Section from
continuing operations was 38.9% in 2018, representing an increase of
12.0 percentage points from 26.9% in 2017. The increase in gross profit
margin of ASIC Section was mainly due to the decrease in cost of sales of
ASIC products. The gross profit of the Standard IC Section from continuing
operations increased significantly by 23.5% from approximately HK$1.7
million in 2017 to approximately HK$2.1 million in 2018, and the gross profit
margin of Standard IC Section from continuing operations was 49.3% in
2018, representing a rise of 6.2 percentage points from 43.1% in 2017. The
increase in gross profit margin of Standard IC Section was mainly attributable
to the increase in revenue from certain higher margin Standard IC products.
The overall gross profit of the Group from continuing operations increased
by 5.3% from approximately HK$47.4 million in 2017 to approximately
HK$49.9 million in 2018, and the overall gross profit margin of the Group
from continuing operations was 65.4%, representing an increase of 3.0
percentage points from 62.4% in 2017. The overall gross profit margin
decreased as the profit margin of the property management business in the
PRC has declined.

Expenses

Staff costs from continuing operations increased significantly by 13% from
approximately HK$18.4 million in 2017 to approximately HK$20.8 million
in 2018. The increase was primarily attributable to general pay rise and the
property management business in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Depreciation and amortisation from continuing operations in 2018 was
approximately HK$1.5 million, similar to that of the corresponding period in
previous year.

Operating lease rentals from continuing operations increased by 19.0% from
approximately HK$2.1 million in 2017 to approximately HK$2.5 million in
2018, which was mainly due to the move to new offices in PRC during 2018.

Other operating expenses from continuing operations decreased by 16.1%
from approximately HK$9.3 million in 2017 to approximately HK$7.8
million in 2018. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
spending on expansion and development of the business, such as legal and
professional fee.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company from
continuing operations for the year 2018 was approximately HK$15.5
million. For the year 2017, the consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$10.3 million. The increase
was approximately HK$5.2 million, or 50.5%. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in overall revenue and gross profit as a result of
revenue and profit generated from the property management business in
PRC.

Cost to income ratio

The cost to income ratio of the Group (expenses/revenue) from continuing
operations was 47.9% in 2018, representing a drop of 2.1 percentage points
from 50.0% in 2017. The drop in its ratio was mainly attributable to the
revenue generated from the property management business in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEEBNW RN (B

RISKS RELATING TO THE GROUP AND ITS
BUSINESS

Reliance on a few key customers

The Group’s ability to maintain close relationships with its customers is
important to its ongoing growth and profitability. Although the Group’s
revenue from specific customers vary from period to period, a significant
portion of the Group'’s total revenue was derived from a few major customers
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the corresponding period in last
year. The five largest customers accounted for approximately 25.0% and
27.2% of the Group’s revenue while the largest customer accounted for
approximately 7.6% and 6.8% of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively. The Group has established its
business relationship with the largest customer, which is an independent
third party (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) principally engaged in
property management and consulting services, since 2017. However, as
the Group does not enter into long term or master services contracts with
its major customers, there is no assurance that they will continue to use the
services from the Group at the same level as they have done in the past.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$89.8 million (31 December 2017: approximately HK$39.0
million) and did not have any borrowings, banking facilities or any loan
arrangement. The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was
1,424.4% (31 December 2017: 1,501.2%), reflecting the fact that the
liquidity of the Group remained healthy. The gearing ratio calculated as the
ratio of total interest-bearing debt to total asset was nil as at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: nil). The Group’s financial position is healthy, and
that enables the Group to expand its core business and achieve its business
objectives.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any charges on its assets
(81 December 2017: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in United States dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is exposed to
foreign currency exchange risk. The Group has not implemented any foreign
currency hedging policy at the moment. However, continuous monitoring
on the foreign exchange exposure is carried out by the management and
the management will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or capital
commitment as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2018, nor were there
other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries by the Group during
the year 2018. Apart from those disclosed in this annual report, there was
no other plan authorised by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets at the date of this report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEEBNW RN (B

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has approximately 46 (31 December 2017: 47) employees as at
31 December 2018. The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practice and are determined on the basis of performance,
qualification and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises
the importance of building a good relationship with its employees. The
remuneration payable to our employees includes salaries and allowances.
Other benefits include training and discretionary bonus.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has minimised the operation impact on the environment and
natural resource. During 2018, the Group encourages every staff to turn off
the computers, photocopiers and other electronic equipment when they
are off duty or on leave. The Group is going to review the environmental
practices from time to time and will consider measures and practices to
enhance the long term sustainability of the environment.

Detailed discussion of the environmental policies and performance will be
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be
separately published within three months after the publication of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance, for instance, the operating
licences may be terminated. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with the applicable rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
effectively through effective communications.

During the year under review, to the best of knowledge of the Board, the
Group has complied with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable rules and regulations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

TERMINATION OF MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING FOR THE PROPOSED
ACQUISITION

On 13 June 2018, the Company as prospective purchaser and Loong
Construction Development Company Limited as the prospective vendor and
being an independent third party of the Group entered into a memorandum
of understanding (“MOU") in relation to the proposed acquisition of 100%
of the issued share capital of Uyou Technology Co., Limited (the “Target
Company”) (the “Proposed Acquisition”). The Target Company is principally
engaged in provision of network technology, computer hardware and
software technology development, technology transfer, technical consulting;
sales of computer hardware and software; web design; corporate image
planning, market information consulting; computer system integration
services; market research; corporate marketing planning; conference and
exhibition display services; real estate agent; business consulting (not
including the investment consulting) and engineering survey and design
services in the PRC. On 14 August 2018, the Company and the prospective
vendor entered into an agreement to terminate the MOU (the “Termination
of MOU”) with immediate effect as the Company was not satisfied with the
result of due diligence in relation to the Target Company and its subsidiaries.

Details of the MOU for Proposed Acquisition and Termination of MOU were
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 13 June 2018 and 14
August 2018 respectively.

VOLUNTARY CONDITIONAL CASH OFFER

On 24 August 2018, Zhongtai International Securities Limited for and on
behalf of Champsword Limited (Mr. Lau Mo, the executive director of the
Company, is the sole beneficial owner of all of the issued shares capital of
the Champsword Limited) (the “Offeror”) made the voluntary conditional
cash offer (the “Offer”) to acquire all of the issued shares of the Company
other than those already owned by the Offeror and the concert parties. The
Offer was closed on 25 October 2018 and the valid acceptances under the
Offer were 385,400,526 shares. The Offeror, therefore, held an aggregate of
800,400,526 shares, representing approximately 57.26% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company on 25 October 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEEBNW RN (B

Details of the Offer and the close of Offer were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 August 2018, 5 September 2018, 21 September
2018, 11 October 2018 and 25 October 2018 respectively.

OUTLOOK

The overall global stock market and economies continued to be unstable
as there is an ongoing trade conflict between the United States of America
and the PRC. The US Federal Reserve Bank expected that the interest
rate hike cycle may be ending sonner than sooner. Facing the challenging
environment in Hong Kong and the PRC, the Group will continue to
enhance the operational efficiency in IC business by closely monitoring the
development of the products and optimizing resource allocation. As the
market competition of the money lending business is still keen and highly
competitive, the Group will be maintaining its focus on high net worth
customers to minimize the overall credit risk. The Group is also going to
divert more attention and resource to develop the property management
business in the PRC and is considering to expand this segment through
acquisition of the property management companies and other service
companies which provide services relating to real estate and property
management.

Looking forward, the global economies and operation environment is full of
challenges, the management will continue to exercise prudence in looking for
any suitable business opportunities, so as to diversify the source of revenues
and cash flows, taking into account the funding requirement and associated
business risk.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to
present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December
2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public accountability and
corporate governance are beneficial for the healthy growth of the Group,
improving customer and supplier confidence and safeguarding the interests
of shareholders of the Group.

The Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate governance
principles and practices to ensure compliance. The Company has adopted
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules as its own code and has complied with the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, except the following
deviations:

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should generally attend general meetings to gain and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

1. Mr. Lau Mo (an executive Director) was unable to attend the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 10 January
2018 as he was obliged to be away for his business matter.

2. Mr. Liu Kam Lung (a non-executive Director) was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 April 2018 as he
was obliged to be away for his business matter.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREBRE (H)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Upon the specific enquiry made to all the Directors, the Company was not
aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven directors including three executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Qing (Chairman), Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr. Lau Mo, one non-executive Director namely Mr.
Liu Kam Lung and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis, Mr. Chiu Yu Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai. An
updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions and whether
they are independent non-executive Directors has been published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively. The profiles
of the Directors are set out in the section “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TEEBRE (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, four regular Board meetings and & £2018F 1231 B It F € B EH @R
three other Board meetings were held in addition to circulation of written EZ N L BT TARNEE S HH &5 M3X
resolution. The attendance record of individual Directors to the Board andthe H i ®E =& @ % - 8 £2018F12A318 [FF
committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2018 are shown [ ARlEENEEeRZEeexmNHERT

below: gROAE -
Attendance record of meetings held in 2018
R2018F AB{THE RN E T E
Annual General Extraordinary Remuneration Nomination
Name of member Meeting General Meeting Board  Audit Committee Committee Committee
HEARE RRBEAE BREFAAE Ezg ENZEE ¥Mzag REZE%
In number In number In number In number In number In number
(in %) (in %) (in %) (in %) (in %) (in %)
R R R R R R
(BRM) (BAL) (Ant) (Bnk) (BR) (Bnk)
Total Number of Meetings 1 1 7 6 1 1
SENBAY (Note 1)
(FizE1)
Number of Meetings attended/Total
HEEERY B
Executive Directors
HTES
Mr. Zhang Qing (Chairman) 11 11 m N/A N/A N/A
REKLE(FE) (100%) (100%) (100%) TEA TER TR
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Chief Executive Officer) 17 il 7 N/A N/A N/A
REEEL (7THAER) (100%) (100%) (100%) e TEA TEA
Mr. Lau Mo 17 0/1 7 N/A N/A N/A
Bt (100%) (0%) (100%) TR T TEA
Non-Executive Director
FHTES
Mr. Liu Kam Lung 0/1 11 mn N/A N/A N/A
BoELSE (0%) (100%) (100%) TEm TER TER
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis 17 11 mn 6/6 17 11
REXEE (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang 17 11 mn 6/6 17 11
BEREE (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Mr. Ko Yin Wai 17 11 m 6/6 11 11
SERLE (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%) (100%)
Note: B 5 -

1. The Board held four regular Board meetings and three other full Board meetings 1. HZE2018F12A31HIEFEN EFEHRT T4
during the year ended 31 December 2018. REEEERLHRRINEMEBEETSSH -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
AU % = ;Ié? 3:? (mﬁ)

THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of management of
the Company’s business and is collectively responsible for the Company’s
affair under the Board’s direction and supervision. All the Directors should
make decision objectively in the interests of the Company.

The overall responsibilities of the Board include considering and making
decisions on the following matters:

(i) Setting the corporate goals of the Group and formulating the Group’s
strategy and monitoring the implementation;

(ii) Diversification and extension of activities into new business area;
(i)  Approving the annual, half year and quarterly results;

(iv)  Formulating and implementing dividend policy;

(v) Formulating and implementing material acquisitions and disposal;
(vi)  Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s internal control systems;
(vii)  Monitoring the performance of the Management; and

(vii)  Determining and reviewing the composition and diversity of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

BOARD COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY
POLICY

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy since 30 August 2013.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board that should
have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Group’s business and compliance with policies.
The composition and diversity policies of the Board is reviewed annually
and regularly. The Board should ensure that its changes in composition will
not result in any undue interference. The Board members should possess
appropriate professionalism, experience and trustworthiness in performing
duties and functions. The Board would diversify its composition according
to the Company’s situations and need. While participating in nomination
and recommendation of director candidates during the year, each member
of the Board may consider a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
or professional experience in achieving diversity for the benefit of the
Company’s various business development and management. The Board is
to review the policy concerning diversity of Board members, and to disclose
the policy or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report,
including any quantitative targets and standards and its progress with policy
implementation.

During the year of 2018, the Board has reviewed the diversity of the Board
and considered the Board composition and diversity policy appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREBRE (H)

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board formulated the nomination policy on 30 January 2019, under the
nomination policy, the Company adopts fair, formal, rigorous and transparent
criteria and procedures for the selection and appointment of new Directors.

Selection Criteria

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
will recommend, and the Board will approve the appointment or
reappointment of Directors through thorough consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, race, ethnicity, cultural,
educational background, professional experience and length of service.

Also, in making a recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of independent non-executive Directors, the Nomination
Committee shall ensure the proposed independent non-executive Directors
meet the criteria of independence as laid down in the GEM Listing Rules.
In addition, the Nomination Committee specifically considers the time
commitment of the proposed independent non-executive Directors especially
if the proposed independent non-executive Directors will be holding their
seventh (or more) listed issuer directorship. Independent non-executive
Directors sitting on multiple boards will need to ensure they devote sufficient
time to the each board and board committees.

Procedures for appointment of new Directors

1. Before making an appointment, the Nomination Committee assesses
the structure, size and composition of the current Board in order to
consider the range of backgrounds, qualifications, skills, experience,
expertise, knowledge, independence, attributes, diversities and
perspectives of the Board that are required to constitute a balanced
Board to contribute to the decision-making capabilities of the Board to
avoid groupthink and to enhance the effectiveness of the Board so as
to achieve better corporate governance results.

2. In view of this assessment, the Nomination Committee will draw
up a description of the role and competencies needed. Based on
such description, the Nomination Committee will select from a broad
range of candidates who are in and outside the Board’s circle of
contacts in accordance with the Company’s diversity policy, with a
view to appointing the best-placed individual for the role. During this
process, the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying suitable candidates, such as by advertising,
referral or through recruitment consultants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

The Nomination Committee will access candidates thoroughly with a
rigorous appraisal of the candidates’ track record and abilities against
the defined selection criteria in view of the Board’s agreed strategies
and objectives to the challenges and opportunities that the Company
is facing.

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation
to the Board in relation to the proposed appointment. The Nomination
Committee will provide the relevant information of the selected
candidate to the remuneration committee for consideration of
remuneration package of such selected candidate.

Chairman of the Board may perform interview and assess the selected
candidate’s character, integrity, judgement, independence, potential
conflicts of interest and time commitment to the Company. The
candidate may be asked to give presentation on his/her proposals
for the Company’s strategy and his/her visions about the Company’s
future. Chairman of the Board will report to the Board for the approval
of appointment.

If the candidate does not match the Board’s criteria, a new round of
recruitment will take place.

Procedures for re-appointment of Directors

1.

All Directors should be subject to re-elect at regular interval. Every
Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

If an independent non-executive Director serves more than nine
years, his/her further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. The papers to shareholders
accompanying that resolution should include the reasons why
the Board believe the independent non-executive Director is still
independent and should be re-elected.

In re-appointment of Directors, the Board shall follow the same
procedure as the appointment of new Directors, except for the need
to identify suitable candidates. The Board shall especially consider the
independence of the proposed Directors since the independence of
the proposed Directors is likely to diminish over time as the Directors
become familiar with the Company and the executives or the Board.
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Objectives

All appointments to the Board are made on merit and within this context, the
Board continues to view diversity in the widest sense, including the global
trend of gender diversity so the Board will consider to increase the number of
women on Board during the nomination process of Directors, with a view to
appointing the best-placed individual for the role which is critical to the long
term success of the Company. Thus the Board will continue to attract, retain,
develop and motivate the right talents from time to time.

The Board should also include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors)
so that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement. Non-executive Directors should
be of sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight.

Review

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to select and appoint Directors
and to periodically review the succession planning to key positions of
the Company as well as the nomination policy to ensure the policy is
remain relevant to the Company’s need and reflect both current regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

MANAGEMENT

The daily management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management (the
“Management”). The delegated functions and assignments are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to entering into
any significant transactions by the above mentioned officers.

The overall responsibilities of the Management include considering and
making decisions on the following matters:

(i) Implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board;

(ii) Strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i) Closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv)  Putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(v) Managing the Group’s day to day business.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors; and at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors were
independent.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications by the Company containing the names of the Directors.

Mr. Zhang and Mr. Lau, the executive Directors of the Company, are
brothers-in-law. Save as otherwise disclosed herein, there is no family or
other material relationship among members of the Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, should keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses
and activities of the Group. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and
updates all Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors provided
their training record to the Company in respect of their participation in
training activities such as attending seminars relevant to their duties and
responsibilities as directors of a listed company, particulars of which are as
follows:
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Reading materials relevant to
director’s duties and responsibilities
and/or attending seminar(s) relevant
to the skill of the director’s position
METHEESREREEZERR
RHERESRUREERZAEE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Zhang Qing (Chairman)

RESLE (FE)

Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Chief Executive Officer)
RGREL (7THAES)

Mr. Lau Mo

ZIR L

Non-Executive Director
FHITES

Mr. Liu Kam Lung
BaeiELE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis
REXSTHE

Mr. Chiu Yu Wang

TR

Mr. Ko Yin Wai

mBEEE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board of the Company is Mr. Zhang Qing. The Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo. The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separated and not performed
by the same individual to prevent power concentration on any one individual.
The Chairman is primarily responsible for managing the Board, whereas the
Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for overseeing the various
businesses of the Group. Their respective roles and responsibilities are
summarised as follows:

Responsibilities of the Chairman include:

(i) leading the Board and ensuring that the Board functions effectively and
smoothly;

(i) chairing the Board and shareholder’s meetings;

(i) approving the agenda for each Board meeting, taking into account,
where appropriate, any matters proposed by the other Directors and
the Company Secretary for inclusion in the agenda;

(iv)  ensuring that all Directors receive all relevant information prior to each
meeting and are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings;

(v)  ensuring all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely and constructive manner;

(vi)  encouraging all Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, to actively participate in all Board and Board Committees
meetings and promoting a culture of openness for the Directors to
share and voice their concerns on all matters during each meeting;

(vii)  ensuring good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and followed; and

(viii)  taking appropriate steps to provide effective communication with
shareholders and to ensure that shareholders’ view are communicated
to the Board as a whole.
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Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer include:

(i) implementing the Group’s policy and strategies as set by the Board;

(ii) strategic planning of different business and functions;

(i)  closely monitoring operational and financial results in accordance with
plans and budgets;

(iv)  assuming full accountability to the Board for all aspects of the Group’s
operations and performance;

(v maintaining ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and the other
Directors;

(vi)  developing and leading an effective executive team;

(vi)  putting adequate operational, planning and financial control systems in
place; and

(viii)  representing the Company and managing the Group’s day to day
business.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are
appointed for an initial term of one year and subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). At each annual general meeting, not less than
one third of the Directors then in office shall retire and every Director is
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All existing Directors are entitled to a fixed remuneration per month or fee
per annum respectively. The remuneration of each Director is subject to the
annual review of the Board with reference to his contribution in terms of time,
effort and his expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors during the year 2018
are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred
during the performance of their duties to the Company and are eligible for
share options under the Share Option Scheme.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee,
all with specific terms of reference clearly defining the powers and
responsibilities of the respective board committees. All board committees are
required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions, findings or recommendations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference that are in conformity with the requirements of the
CG Code which are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited and the Company.

The Audit Committee is currently composed of the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis, Mr. Chiu Yu Wang
and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis, with all
members being independent non-executive Directors of the Company in full
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, six audit committee meetings were
held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 19 of this annual
report.

The role and function of the Audit Committee include the following:

() Relationship with the Company’s auditors

(@  to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to review and monitor the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the external auditors the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences; and
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(c) to develop and implement policy on engaging the external
auditors to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditors” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing
all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed.

(ii) Review of the Company’s financial information

(@  to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual report
and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports of the
Company, and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them. In reviewing these reports and accounts
before submission to the Board, the Audit Committee should
focus particularly on:

(1) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(2)  major judgmental areas;
(8)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(4)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(5)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(6) compliance with GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting.
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Regarding (ii)(a) above,

(1) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management, and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the external auditors;
and

(2)  the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the
reports and accounts and should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, compliance officer or the
external auditors.

(iii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
systems

(@  to review the financial controls, and unless expressly addressed
by a separate Board risk management and internal control
committee, or by the Board itself, to review the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company;

(b)  to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions;

(c)  to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and the management’s response to these findings;

(d)  to ensure co-ordination between the internal and the external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

(e)  to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of
the Company and its subsidiaries;
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to review the management letter of the external auditors, any
material queries raised by the external auditors to management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and the management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the management letter of the external auditors;

to report to the Board on the matters in the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules;

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditors.

Major accomplishments in 2018 comprised the following:

(@  reviewed the quarterly, half-yearly and annually results of the Group as
well as discussed and reviewed financial and other reports for the year;

(o)  reviewed the external auditors’ significant findings and management’s
response to the recommendation raised;

(c)  reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and the adequacy of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions of the Group;

(d)  reviewed and approved the external auditors’ statutory audit scope for
2018 and the letter of representation to be given by the Board;

(e) considered and approved the 2018 external audit fees and
engagement letters;
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® monitored the audit and non-audit services rendered to the Group by
its external auditor and ensures their engagement in other non-audit
services, if any, will not impair their audit independence or objectivity;

(@) recommended to the Board in relation to the terms of reference of
Audit Committee; and

(h) recommended to the Board regarding the dividend policy.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and recommended approval to
the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirement of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the
CG Code are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis,
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Cheung Chi Man
Dennis.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, one remuneration committee
meeting was held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 19 of this
annual report.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee includes:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goal and objectives;
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(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, person rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

(v)  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group;

(vi)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(vi) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or remove of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are
consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

(vii) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Major accomplishments in 2018 comprised the following:

(i) reviewed matters relating to the existing remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management; and

(i) considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy with
reference to time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors
and the senior management, desirability of performance-based
remuneration.
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ANNUAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Remuneration Bands

EEEBRSE

(&)

XN TEREBAENES

HE2018F 12831 B L FERBEE HH S
BEBABNFHNOT:

]Ul

Number of Individuals

FENEE ABEE
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 5
4 —1,000,00078 7T

Total 4285 5

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in
conformity with the requirements of the CG Code and are available on
the websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is currently composed of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis, Mr. Chiu Yu
Wang and Mr. Ko Yin Wai, and chaired by Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held and the members’ attendance is shown on page 19 of this annual
report.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee includes:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the Chairman and the chief executive of the Company; and
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(v} where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, it should
set out in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting why the
Nomination Committee believes he should be elected and the reasons
why the Nomination Committee considers him to be independent.

Major accomplishments in 2018 comprised the following:
(i) recommended to the Board with respect to the retirement and re-
election of Directors at the last annual general meeting held on 27 April

2018;

(ii) recommended to the Board in relation to the terms of reference of
Nomination Committee; and

(i)~ recommended to the Board regarding the nomination policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board held one meeting for the purpose of reviewing the compliance of
corporate governance policies for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The duties of the Board include:

(i) to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the CG Report.
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Major accomplishments in 2018 comprised the following:

(i) evaluated the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and made appropriate amendments;

(ii) arranged the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; and

@iy  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS

Auditors’ Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the external
auditors to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$650,000 and HK$60,000 respectively. The non-audit
service represented service fees for the voluntary conditional cash offer.

The accounts for the year 2018 were audited by CF Partners Limited whose
term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
CF Partners Limited be re-appointed as the auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and true
and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern as at 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statement is set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company improves its business and operational activities by identifying
the areas of significant business risks via a regular review and taking
appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks. The management
of the Company reviews all significant control policies and procedures and
highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and review
the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls with a view
to ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets are
safeguarded. The Company has established internal audit department to
monitor compliance with policies and procedures and the effectiveness
of internal control structures of the Group. The internal audit department
reports directly to the Audit Committee and ensure the internal controls are in
place and functioning properly as intended. In the year under review, Infinity
Concept Ripple Limited as an external professional firm, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group, covering material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. In addition, there is regular dialogue between the
Audit Committee and the Group’s external auditors so that both are aware of
the significant factors which may affect their respective scope of work.
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Audit Committee reviewed the internal control system in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018 by reference to the internal control review report
issued by Infinity Concept Ripple Limited and considered the system effective
and adequate. The Board conducted a review of the internal control system
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018,
including financial, operational and compliance control, and risk management
functions. The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control by
considering the reviews performed by Infinity Concept Ripple Limited. The
Company complies with the code provisions relating to internal control
contained in the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2018, the Joint Company Secretaries were Dr. Sung Tak
Wing Leo and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Joint Company Secretaries of
the Company are set out in the section of “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

A written record had been received by the Company from Dr. Sung Tak
Wing Leo and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu to confirm that each of them took not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2018. The Company is of the view that Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo
and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu have complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

In order to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are subject to the Articles, and the applicable
legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Article 58 of the Articles; and

(i) if within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/
herself/themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Apart from sending email to info@newwesterngroup.com.hk, shareholders
may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them
to the headquarters and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong at Suite 2101, 21/F, Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester
Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, by post or by fax to (852) 2539 0323, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to
the Articles, shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out above.

DIVIDEND POLICY

To allow shareholders of the Company to participate in the Company’s
profit whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth
opportunities. The Company formulates the dividend policy aims at
enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the shareholders
and investors to make informed investment decision relating to the Company.
The Board of the Company shall consider the following factors of the Group
before declaring or recommending dividends and any declaration of dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders:

(i) the Group’s financial conditions;
(i)  the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

@iy the Group’s cash flow, working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(iv)  the Group’s retained earnings and distributable reserves;

(v)  the Group’s liquidity position;
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(vi)  general economic conditions, future prospects of the Group and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group;

(vi)  applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s articles of association;

(vii) the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to its shareholders;

(ix)  shareholders’ interest of the Company; and
(x)  other factors that the Board may consider appropriate.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time and may take any
amendments that it deems necessary or desirable. The Company does not
have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio and there is no assurance
that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include
the annual general meeting, the annual, interim and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars and the Company’s website at www.
newwesterngroup.com.hk.

CONSTITUTION DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Qing (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 49, is an executive Director and
Chairman of the Board of the Company with effect from 1 July 2014 and
was appointed as the compliance officer of the Company with effect from
30 April 2015. He was appointed as an investor relations officer of the
Company since 18 March 2014. Mr. Zhang is also a director of the certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree in
economics from Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Trade* ( & /¥ 9MNE 5 6% )
(currently known as Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (/& B MsE5h
HRE)) in the PRC in July 1991 and further obtained a master’s degree
in business administration from San Diego State University in the United
States in December 1998. From July 1991 to July 1996, he worked as the
foreign sales staff of China National Light Industrial Products Import & Export
Corporation*. From February 2000 to November 2003, Mr. Zhang worked
as the manager of investment department of Sichuan Harmony Enterprises
(Group) Limited*. From July 2006 to February 2013, he worked as the
investment manager of Canada Shenghe Investment Inc. Besides, Mr. Zhang
acted as the director of Sichuan Harmony Enterprises (Group) Limited*
during the period from 8 March 2011 to 12 September 2013. Mr. Zhang
is a brother-in-law of Mr. Lau Mo, an executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)

The English translation of names or any descriptions in Chinese which are
marked with is for identification purpose only.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEREREBAENERE (B)

Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (“Dr. Sung”), aged 58, is currently an executive
Director, chief executive officer, joint company secretary and authorised
representative of the Company. Dr. Sung was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 23 December 2011, re-
designated as an executive Director of the Company on 7 March 2014,
was appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company with effect
from 24 December 2014 and was promoted from chief financial officer to
the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 30 April 2015.
Dr. Sung is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Sung
is responsible for the accounting and finance management, and business
development as well as company secretarial matters of the Group. Dr.
Sung obtained a bachelor’s degree of Commerce in Management and
Marketing from Curtin University of Technology in Australia in 2002 and
also obtained a Master Degree of Accountancy from Lingnan University in
2012. Dr. Sung has been awarded the distinction of an honorary doctor in
Business Administration from American Purlinton University on 12 January
2013. Dr. Sung was admitted as an associate member of Association of
International Accountants, UK in 2016 and he was admitted as a fellow of
Institute of Public Accountants, Australia, a fellow of Institute of Financial
Accountants, UK and a certified Management Accountant, Australia in 2017.
From September 2004 to February 2014, Dr. Sung served as the managing
director and a responsible officer of King’s HT Securities Limited, a licensed
corporation under the SFO, and accumulated working in the securities
industry for about 12 years. Before entering into securities industry, Dr. Sung
has worked for several solicitors’ firms in Hong Kong for about 17 years.

Mr. Lau Mo (“Mr. Lau”), aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 12 May 2017. Mr. Lau is an experienced investor
in securities and financial products. Mr. Lau has accumulated extensive
experience and connections in international trade, corporate operation,
management, investment and financial business for more than 20 years.
Mr. Lau graduated from West China University of Medical Sciences* (/H
JIIZEFR & BL K E2) (currently known as West China Centre of Medical
Sciences, Sichuan University) with a bachelor degree in Pharmacy in 1990.
Mr. Lau subsequently obtained a master degree in Economics from the
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1998. Mr. Lau is the sole owner
of Champsword Limited, a company which is beneficially interested in
800,400,526 ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
57.26% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2018.

Mr. Lau is a brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Qing, an executive Director of the
Company.

The English translation of names or any descriptions in Chinese which are

marked with “*” is for identification purpose only.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Liu Kam Lung (“Mr. Liu”), aged 55, previously an executive Director
of the Company, was re-designated as a non-executive Director of the
Company on 16 October 2014. Mr. Liu obtained a Diploma of Business
Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (currently known as Hong
Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. Mr. Liu was admitted as an associate
of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of the United
Kingdom, an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
an associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a full member
of the Society of Registered Financial Planners and an associate of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in 1993, 1994, 1995, 1999, 2009 and 2010
respectively. Mr. Liu has over 27 years of experience in the financial industry.
Mr. Liu is currently the chief executive officer of China Rise Finance Group
Company Limited, a subsidiary of Symphony Holdings Limited (stock code:
1223.HK). Mr. Liu is also the independent non-executive director of Pak Tak
International Limited (stock code: 2668.HK). Mr. Liu was the independent
non-executive director of Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1808.HK) for the period from January 2015 to April 2017. Mr. Liu was
a non-executive director of Kith Holdings Limited (stock code: 1201.HK) for
the period from October 2010 to June 2013. In addition, from March 2011 to
October 2014, Mr. Liu was an executive Director, finance director, company
secretary and authorised representative of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEREREBAENERE (B)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 51, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 30 April 2015.
Mr. Cheung is also the independent non-executive director of the Prosper
Construction Holdings Limited (stock code: 6816.HK), the chairman of the
audit committee, a member of the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and risk management committee. He was a former independent
non-executive director (from November 2005 to October 2008), executive
director (from October 2008 to December 2013), chief financial officer
(from October 2008 to December 2013) and company secretary (from
October 2008 to September 2014) of Peace Map Holding Limited (formerly
known as Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited) (stock code: 0402.
HK), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
also an independent non-executive director of Powerwell Pacific Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8265.HK) from September 2010 to September 2014,
a company listed on the GEM. Prior to taking up the above-mentioned
post of the Company, he was the chief finance officer of the China division
of Midland Holdings Limited (stock code: 1200.HK) from November 2004
to November 2008, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cheung was a director of XACT INTEGRATED MARKETING
LIMITED, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, which was
dissolved by deregistration pursuant to section 291AA of the then prevailing
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) on 7
September 2007. To the best of the knowledge and belief of Mr. Cheung,
XACT INTEGRATED MARKETING LIMITED was principally engaged in
commercial advertising and had ceased business and was solvent at the
time of it being dissolved by deregistration. Mr. Cheung has over 24 years of
experience in accounting and financial management. He obtained a master’s
degree in commerce from the University of New South Wales, Australia in
April 1993 and a bachelor’'s degree in mechanical engineering from the
University of London, United Kingdom in August 1990. Mr. Cheung is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chiu Yu Wang (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 17 February 2014. He obtained a
certificate in Business Studies (Banking) from Lee Wai Lee Technical Institute
of the Vocational Training Council Hong Kong in August 1983. He has over
20 years of marketing experience in banking industry. Since May 2010, Mr.
Chiu has become a shareholder and a director of Sparkle Well Environmental
Lighting Company Limited, which is principally engaged in trading of
environmental lighting products.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Ko Yin Wai (“Mr. Ko”), aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 23 December 2011. He currently is
an enterprise consultant for Dongguan Changping Qiaohui Lipeng Plastic &
Hardware Manufacturing Company (R & F B ERBME Y B A+ &%)
and a marketing strategic consultant for Shenzhen Lanshuo Communication
Equipment Company Limited CRYI T EBEBAEE AR Q7). M. Ko
has been working in the electronic consumer products industry for about 19
years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Kwei Chung (“Mr. Li”), aged 49, is one of the founders of the
Group. He was an executive Director of the Company during the period
from 15 June 2011 to 30 April 2015. He was the chief executive officer
and compliance officer of the Company until 30 April 2015. Mr. Li has been
a director of a subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation
Limited, since September 2004 and is also a director of a Company’s
subsidiary. He is responsible for daily operations, research and development
activities, procurement and quality control of the Group. Mr. Li obtained
a bachelor's degree of Engineering and master’'s degree of Science in
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in 1992 and 1998 respectively.
He has over 20 years of experience in the semiconductor field. Mr. Li was
appointed as a member of the Information and Communication Technology
R&D Centre Technology Review Panel of ASTRI for the years of 2011
to 2014. His responsibilities includes advising ASTRI on improving the
quality of ASTRI's R&D projects in terms of technical merit as well as the
commercialisation prospects and technology transfer potential of the projects
and assisting in evaluating the effectiveness of funded projects in terms of
assisting Hong Kong and Pearl River Delta based companies’ to upgrade
their technological competitiveness.

Mr. Lam Nim Yin (“Mr. Lam”), aged 59, joined one subsidiary of the
Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, in March 2007 and is
currently the marketing manager. From June 2013 to January 2016, he
was a director of MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited. He is responsible
for sales and marketing activities, logistic and warehouse control. Mr. Lam
has been working in semiconductor industry for about 30 years. During the
period from 1993 to 2009, he served as a director of a company engaging in
trading of electronics such as IC.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EEREREBAENERE (B)

Mr. Liu Loi Ying (“Mr. Liu”), aged 41, joined one subsidiary of the
Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, in July 2003 and is
currently the engineering director and team leader in the R&D Department.
He is responsible for leading a team of engineers in R&D operations, and
supporting sales and marketing activities. Mr. Liu was an executive Director
of the Company during the period from 15 June 2011 to 30 April 2013.
He obtained a bachelor’s degree of Engineering in Computer Science and
Computer Engineering and a master’'s degree of Science in IC Design
Engineering from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2001 and 2005 respectively. He has been working in the semiconductor field
for about 16 years.

Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu (“Ms. Leung”), aged 33, is an associate of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and holds a bachelor’s degree
of Business Administration in Accounting from The Open University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Leung has over 10 years of experience in the field of auditing,
accounting, taxation and company secretarial services. Ms. Leung joined
the Company on 20 March 2017 as a company secretary officer and was
responsible for the company secretarial matter of the Group. She has served
as joint company secretary and authorised representative of the Company
since 30 September 2017.

Mr. Yuen Wai Yiu Gary, aged 34, joined one subsidiary of the Company,
Easy Loan Finance Limited (“Easy Loan”), on 24 July 2015 and was
appointed as a director of Easy Loan on 26 February 2016 and is
responsible for money lending business and daily operations of Easy Loan.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in Computing and Information Systems
from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2008 and a Master Degree of
Accountancy from Lingnan University in 2012. He has been working in the
money lending business for about 10 years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu are the Joint Company
Secretaries of the Company. For details of their profile, please refer to the
paragraphs headed “Executive Directors” and “Senior Management” under
this section.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Zhang Qing is the compliance officer of the Company. For details of his
profile, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” under this
section.

48 New Western Group Limited Annual Report 2018

BRERE ([BEEE]) 4155 H2003F7
AMAERZR—HKBAGEMASRERAA
T - BATRRAENWRBANBEKEE -
FERETE—XTRMEBETHEIE X
M EREEREH T - BEREN2011F6A4
158 E2013F4 30 M E A AR RINITE
E oM R2001F M2005F EFBRFEAES
FIERTERMNERGFERTIREELEMR
ERERBATRE TS - FR L EEBITE
TE#I164F ©

RiEMZT ([RLx]) 335 AEBEET
MAge8 UHAEESARASGHBLE
TRHEBELTEBM BRI HNET &
BRARMERGESAGBAI0OFLR - BL
THR2017F3A20B MAARRAIHERGWE
FHEEBEAKEZARMESHE - HFH2017F
OABOBMEETARABMEARIMES RIFEER
;_FZO

REZESXE 3455 R2015F7H24H 1A
ARB—HNBARZEVEERAR (IS
%)W R2016F 2826 E LT A S ILIME
CEEVTEBESRY B 2 HEES KB TE
YE- 1 M2008FEBF BTG NBMBEFTHE K
BHRGEELEN RA2012FEEFAE
ERETEBELEM - BRMEEEIIELD0
¢o

DNEWE
RERWERRENL L AALANEERLT

ME-BRAKSENEEFE F2HKHH
TEFIRIEREEABRIBA-

ERXXH

REXERARANERIE - FRERE
HBE F2HAHRTESI BA-



The directors (“Directors”) of New Western Group Limited (the “Company”)
submit herewith their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATION AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no other
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

The analysis of geographical locations of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The business review of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year can
be found in the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out
on pages 7 to 16 of this annual report. This discussion forms parts of this
Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 74 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
i%éiﬁ & (lnﬁ)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”
and note 29(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$124,848,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last 5 financial years is set out on page 192 of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during 2018
or existed as at 31 December 2018.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Qing (Chairman)

Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Mo

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Liu Kam Lung

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis
Mr. Chiu Yu Wang
Mr. Ko Yin Wai
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHRE (B

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE
FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Zhang Qing, Mr. Liu Kam Lung,
Mr. Cheung Chi Man Dennis and Mr. Ko Yin Wai will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Ko Yin Wai will not offer himself for
re-election whereas the other three retiring Directors, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Director
is appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the
other party.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party or in which a Director
or the Director's connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on
pages 43 to 48 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee which takes into account their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

Furthermore, the Company has adopted the share option scheme to reward
participants for their contribution to the Group.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out in note 4(m)
(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHRE (B

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)),
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or (b) to be and were entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
(c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long and Short Positions

Ordinary shares and underlying share of the Company

EEREETBRAERAAF
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Approximate

Number of the percentage of total
Company’s issued issued shares capital
ordinary shares held of the Company
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests (Note 1) (Note 2)
A QRE#T EADREBITRA
EERBRGHE BYENBAEIL
EEHA B HEEME (FFaET) (HM#3E2)
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Qing Personal interest 4,000,000 (L) 0.29%
RESLE [EPN: 37 4,000,000 (%F)
Dr. Sung Tak Wing Leo Personal interest 10,000,000 (L) 0.72%
RGHREL B ARz 10,000,000 (4F)
Mr. Lau Mo Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 800,400,526 (L) 57.26%
800,400,526 (S) 57.26%
2R s ZERDEEER (HEE3) 800,400,526 (#F)
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Notes:

1. The number of the Company’s total issued ordinary shares as at 31 December
2018 was 1,397,782,400. The letter “L” denotes long positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and the letter “S” denotes short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

2. The percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,397,782,400 ordinary shares
of the Company in issues as at 31 December 2018.

3. Mr. Lau Mo is the beneficial owner of all of the issued share capital of
Champsword Limited, and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
800,400,526 ordinary shares of the Company in which Champsword Limited is
beneficially interested. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
16 November 2018, Champsword Limited had executed on 13 November
2018 a charge over its 800,400,526 ordinary shares of the Company in favour
of Zhongtai Financial Investment Limited as security for certain senior secured
note issued by Champsword Limited and subscribed by Zhongtai Financial
Investment Limited. Zhongtai Financial Investment Limited thus has security
interest over these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the
Directors or Chief Executive Officer of the Company, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
(@) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or (c) were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHRE (B

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors or Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, the following persons or corporations
(other than a director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to 336
of the SFO:

Long and Short Positions

Ordinary shares of the Company

hY

B R

FER
K10 & 18

B
=2
>

TRAEARE
BEERAR

AR AME M EFEKITHAK A K2018
F12H31H AR B REZ %&Hﬂiﬂww

E336IEFE

(RARBNEER

wEEMaEsE U TALTHA
?Eﬁﬂ(/\/ﬂl\)%ﬁ$

RARRD RABERDOERIORE

RRARWEBRR G

Total number of the
Company’s issued
ordinary shares held

Approximate
percentage of total
issued share capital

Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests (Note 1) of the Company
AR AR 2 ®T IEARBE BT
ZERRMDBAE R 7 48 B Y
BE®SEEB Bin REEE (BF&ET) BHAED L
Champsword Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 800,400,526 (L) 57.26%
800,400,526 (S) 57.26%
BEmEA A (FzE2) 800,400,526 (4f)
800,400,526 (%)
Mr. Lau Mo Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 800,400,526 (L) 57.26%
800,400,526 (S) 57.26%
2R E ZimtlEEEE (Mit2) 800,400,526 (#f)
800,400,526 (%)
Zhongtai Financial Beneficial owner of security interest 800,400,526 (L) 57.26%
Investment Limited (Notes 2 and 3)
PREMREBRAT EFER s ExmEA A (H72K%3) 800,400,526 (4F)
Zhongtai Financial Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 800,400,526 (L) 57.26%
International Limited
MR R AR A A EEHEEERE (HE3) 800,400,526 (#F)
Zhongtai Securities Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 3) 800,400,526 (L) 57.26%

Company Limited
PFRESROHDBERR

XEHDAE R (HE3)
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Notes:

1. The number of the Company’s total issued ordinary shares as at 31 December
2018 was 1,397,782,400. The letter “L” denotes long positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and the letter “S” denotes short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

2. Mr. Lau Mo is the beneficial owner of all of the issued share capital of
Champsword Limited, and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
800,400,526 ordinary shares of the Company in which Champsword Limited is
beneficially interested. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
16 November 2018, Champsword Limited had executed on 13 November
2018 a charge over its 800,400,526 ordinary shares of the Company in favour
of Zhongtai Financial Investment Limited as security for certain senior secured
note issued by Champsword Limited and subscribed by Zhongtai Financial
Investment Limited. Zhongtai Financial Investment Limited thus has security
interest over these shares.

3. Zhongtai Financial Investment Limited is wholly owned by Zhongtai Financial
International Limited which in turn is indirectly wholly-owned by Zhongtai
Securities Company Limited. Thus Zhongtai Financial International Limited
and Zhongtai Securities Company Limited are deemed to be interested in
the 800,400,526 ordinary shares of the Company in which Zhongtai Financial
Investment Limited has security interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and based on the
public records filed on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and records kept by the Company, no other persons or corporations
(other than Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEEHRE (B

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the year are as

TEREFRHER

AEBNETEERP REREE D B EMG FAH
ERRBHERDT:

follows:
Sales Purchases
HE g
The largest customer BAREBF 8% N/AT 3 A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFER 25% N/AT 3 A
The largest supplier EAHER N/AZ i B 24%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHEEREEE N/A 38 A3 68%

Save as disclosed in this annual report and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, none of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2018 are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, which do not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicity available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.
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INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company and their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group.

At no time during the year 2018 and up to the date of this report, there was
or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of
the Directors and directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 13 November 2018, Champsword Limited, the controlling shareholder of
the Company which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Mo, an executive Director,
executed a charge over its 800,400,526 ordinary shares in the issued share
capital of the Company (representing approximately 57.26% of the issue
share capital of the Company) in favour of Zhongtai Financial Investment
Limited as security for certain senior secured note issued by Champsword
Limited and subscribed by Zhongtai Financial Investment Limited. Zhongtai
Financial Investment Limited is an entity independent of the Company and its
connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules). As at the date of
this report, the said charge has not been released.

For further details of this transaction, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 16 November 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
% % iﬁ & (lnﬁ)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 17 to 42 of this annual
report. Mr. Zhang Qing whose biographical details are set out on page 43
of this report, is the Compliance Officer of the Company and Dr. Sung Tak
Wing Leo and Ms. Leung Cheuk Yu whose biographical details are set out
on page 44 and 48 of this annual report respectively, are the Joint Company
Secretaries of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company prepared
in accordance with Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules will be published
within three months after the publication of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
audited by CF Partners Limited.

JH CPA Alliance Limited, who acted as the auditor of the Company for the
past three years, resigned with effect on 27 April 2018 and CF Partners
Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 27
April 2018 accordingly.

CF Partners Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of CF Partners Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Zhang Qing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CF PARTNERS LIMITED
P e & <t 67 F 45 BT A PR 8]

Certified Public Accountants

C

18 M B BT R

ABARRDLRMEEET4R
HXEPCAEIRIOSE

Room 903, 9/F., Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza
No. 14 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

T it ¢ Tel: 2524-6834 R : Fax: 3178-1077

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEW WESTERN GROUP LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Western
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 191, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Audiitor’s Responsibilities for the Audiit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BB RE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s

FRAEELEE

HREZFERS ME%M%¢ FiZAH
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%¢?ixm$ﬁ BEENEZ
%ﬁﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BER MTAERUSEEEEBERER BT
I —FE RARLETXHREHRT HRMNE
= On{A] BE T2 1% S5 B 4

EECRITARE (KM A F 456 BB

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements — & JERIE L] — &0 Ff Fﬁ MEEE BB
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our % EEENE T At BENEAF TESRE
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our #1717 & S ¥ 45 A B 7§ #& == E E N B8R
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial [ it /& & #9 pjr (& ﬁﬁ FTMERIEF - ESMH
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures TR IRFMER  BERER N EHEFH
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit {THIREFF @ & ¥ k8 W FEMBmEAMEBELNE
opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. ATERIEHEER-

Key audit matters BREREXSE

Goodwill g

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4(c), significant accounting
estimates in note 5 and disclosures of gooadwill in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group is required to annually test the goodwill for impairment. For the
impairment assessment, it involved significant management assumptions
with respect to underlying cash flows, discount rates and future growth
rates for calculation of value in use of the cash generating unit (‘CGU”).

Due to significance of the goodwill of HK$137,448,000 and subjective
assumptions used in estimating the value in use of the CGUs, we
considered it as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill
included:

o Evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by the Group
for the impairment assessment, including CGU’s underlying cash
flows, discount rates and future growth rates;

o Testing basis of preparing the cash flow forecast by comparing
with previous forecasts and evidence supporting the underlying
assumptions;

° Assessing the appropriateness of key assumptions such as the
growth rates by external market data; and

o Reviewing management sensitivity analysis for the sensitive
assumptions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key audit matters

BYZEM®RE (&)

HRELZEE

Impairment assessment of loans receivables

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note 4(h), significant
accounting estimates in note 5 and disclosures of loans receivables in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s
accounting for loan loss impairment by replacing HKAS 39’s incurred loss
approach with a forward looking expected credit loss (‘ECL”) approach.

The Group assesses the ECL according to forward looking information
and using appropriate models involved subjective assumptions relating to
borrower’s creditworthiness such as likelihood of default and corresponding
losses, historical settlement records and subsequent settlement status.

Due to significance of the loans receivables of approximately
HK$98,678,000 (representing 29.0% of total assets) and corresponding
uncertainty inherent in the estimates, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessments
include:

o Understanding and evaluating key controls over origination, ongoing
monitoring and credit quality assessments of the loans receivables;

° Assessing the effectiveness of application of the ECL models, inputs
and assumptions used by the Group in calculating the ECL; and

° Inquiring of management for credit risk of each of the loans
receivables, checking their historical and subsequent settlement
records and performing public search of credit profile of selected
loans receivables.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BB RE ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BB RE ()

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BUZEMEBE (B

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's HEAB I Z B RENEF BB ABEA A

report is Chan Chi Kwong, Dickson.

CF Partners Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019

CHAN Chi Kwong, Dickson
Practicing Certificate Number: P04383
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A
EFB - 2019F3A22H
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MEBEZRI - P04383
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mERaREMEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ihg=2 FHExT FHET
Continuing Operations HEREXEK
Revenue U &5 7 76,328 75,925
Cost of sales and services & M AR 75 A AR (26,413) (28,521)
Gross profit EX 49,915 47,404
Other income Hb U A 8 1,140 459
Other gains and losses H bz B8 9 (27) 569
Staff costs 8 TR (20,805) (18,354)
Depreciation and amortisation e R (1,508) (1,541)
Operating lease rental — land and buildings ~~ &EMAEHEE — LM MIEF (2,493) (2,138)
Other operating expenses HihZERx (7,763) (9,291)
Finance cost &R 10 = (857)
Profit before tax from continuing BB AIRBBELSE
operations EK2EF 11 18,459 16,251
Income tax expense FrS i > 13 (3,938) (6,386)
Profit for the year from continuing REFELERKZ
operations FREF 14,521 9,865
Discontinued Operation CRIEEEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued REBRIEEEEKY
operation FARBEF 14 - 462
Profit for the year FREF 14,521 10,327
Other comprehensive (expense)/income, HfttZmE (BI%), W
net of income tax (HIBRFri8%L)
ltems that may be subsequently HigrlgeEy 2852 EHE
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations ME W EHE (1,237) 586
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHEWFEALE 13,284 10,913
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
GeBETERkEMEAEKER (8)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FHExT FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AATHEE AEML
owners of the Company: FEREF (BHR) -
from continuing operations RAZFEKEER 15,529 10,298
from discontinued operation REDRIEREER - (571)
15,529 9,727
Non-controlling interests: IE 1 IR R s R4
from continuing operations RERBEEEER (1,008) (433)
from discontinued operation KA BRI EETE - 1,033
(1,008) 600
14,521 10,327
Total comprehensive income EhAFRAZEKRREEE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE RN 14,305 10,313
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR A (1,021) 600
13,284 10,913
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Earnings per share attributable to AERATEEANELEESREF
owners of the Company 16
Basic and diluted EARN#E
For profit for the year F A5 F 1.11 0.70
For profit for the year from continuing REFELEEBH 2
operations F N 1.11 0.74
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

E B ISR &

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
R2018F12H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M= FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W W= NEE 17 3,444 3,254
Goodwill Bk 18 137,448 137,448
Loans receivables ERE R 22 = 3,331
Total non-current assets HERBEE 140,892 144,033
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 3,752 3,567
Trade receivables EUNE ZEER 21 5,763 4,107
Loans receivables JEUE 22 98,678 132,091
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  E b JEURFIE ~ & € KT 308 23 1,908 2,613
Bank balances and cash RITEsR RIR 24 89,835 39,013
Total current assets BREEE 199,936 181,391
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables BB SRR 25 1,698 1,292
Other payables and accruals H b JE R R FUIR 26 6,347 5,655
Amount due to a holder of R — I IEVE R i
non-controlling interests BEAZHE 27 1,300 -
Tax payables P BIE 4,691 5,136
Total current liabilities BREBEE 14,036 12,083
Net current assets BREBEE 185,900 169,308
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 326,792 313,341
Non-current liability EREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIEBEE 28 - -
Total non-current liability BERBERS = -
Net assets BEE 326,792 313,341
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
HREMBARRE (B

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

#2018F12H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
s FHExT FHET

Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital A& AR 29(a) 139,778 139,778
Reserves i 29(b) 185,161 170,864
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZNA &% A A FE(G R 324,939 310,642
Non-controlling interests eI IR = 1,853 2,699
Total equity RERmE 326,792 313,341

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 191 were approved S 68ZF191H M4 A B IE & 2 H2019F3 8
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019 and 22BEZEZE# ERRETIR THTIES

signed on its behalf by: REESE:
ZHANG Qing SUNG Tak Wing Leo
RE REBE
Director Director
EF EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HZE2018F12A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREBAELR
(Accumulated
losses)/ Non-
Share Share Merger Statutory ~ Exchange retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests equity
(RitE8E)/ FER
BRE  ROEE  AHEE  iERE  ERRE  REER it EE  ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT TR FAT TR TET TR FET
At 1 January 2017 Roo17#1 818 139,778 148,87 17,041 - (40) (5,905 300,061 1874 301,935
Profit for the year ER - N - - - 9,727 9,727 600 10,327
Other comprehensive income  FREMZE
for the year:
Exchange differences arising BEBNEBEEL
on translation of foreign EXEZR
operations - - - - 586 - 586 - 586
Total comprehensive income FR2ANREE
for the year - - - - 586 9,727 10,313 600 10,913
Change in ownership interest RNBRRCERRE
in a subsidiary that do not B%EY (Tg
result in a loss of control BYREEHE)
(Note 33) (M3£33) - - - - - 268 268 3,132 3,400
Disposal of subsidliaries HEMBAR
(Note 32(c)) (Mi7¥32(0)) - - - - - - - (2,907) (2,907)
Transfer to statutory reserve EREETRE
(Note 29(b) (BisE20()) - - - 508 - (508) - - -
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31R 139,778 148,287 17,941 508 546 3,682 310,642 2,699 313,341
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 EREEYKREER
(Note 3(a) 205222 (Mi3a) - - - - - @ ® ) (13)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R2018F1A1R (BREF) 139,778 148,287 17,941 508 546 3,574 310,634 2,694 313,328
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - 15,529 15,529 (1,008) 14,521
Other comprehensive expense ~ FREM2HERY:
for the year:
Exchange differences arising BEBNEBEEL
on translation of foreign EXZE
operations - - - - (1,224) - (1,224) (13) (1,237)
Total comprehensive FRE2EKRS
(expense)/income for the year (M%) /%8 - - - - (1,224) 15,529 14,305 (1,021) 13,284
Capital contributions REFERER 2 TE
from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 180 180
At 31 December 2018 $2018%12/31 B 139778 148267 17,941 508 ©78) 19103 324939 1853 326792

72 New Western Group Limited Annual Report 2018



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN N —}
=] ‘I“Eﬁ))lbi%%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HZE2018F12A31BILFEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FHExT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RELETH2HERE
Profit before tax B B AR A
From continuing operations REFEKLEERS 18,459 16,251
From discontinued operation KED RIS ER 14 - 919
18,459 17,170
Adjustments for: KRBT EIE:
Bank interest income RITH B A (12) (16)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- BEREBEITE
equipment 1,508 1,716
Amortisation of intangible asset mEERH - 187
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME WEMERE
plant and equipment, net (W) /EiaFss (1) 2
Provision/(reversal of provision) for AR BT ERE,
slow-moving and obsolete inventories (B fERE) 69 (945)
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net EWE SRR EE R F 5 21 (13) 136
Accumulated interest on promissory note E A EE 2 RETAB - 857
Waive of accumulated interest on A HER 2 REFRE
promissory note - (857)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENE AR EE 32(d) - 1,833
Operating cash flows before EEESBHA
working capital changes REBRERE 20,010 20,083
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =FE gm,/md (254) 1,810
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables JEURE B ERZR (380) R (1,656) 3,741
Decrease in loans receivables FEUE FOR 36,744 120,532
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, HihEsE - 2e Kk
deposits and prepayments TERT IR A, (38 n) 705 (690)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JERTE SERFE M, CRd) 406 (176)
Increase in other payables and accruals L FE AT B FE FT RUIE G AN 692 2,387
Increase in amount due to a holder of R —RIEEREERBEALZ
non-controlling interest FRIEIE N 1,300 -
Decrease in amount due to B —RERINB AR 2 — L
a former non-controlling interest ATEFE IR = R R 2
shareholder of a former subsidiary IR - (955)
Cash generated from operations REAKE 2B 57,947 146,732
Income tax paid BATATER (4,363) (3,648)
Net cash from operating activities RELETHZ2FRE 53,584 143,084
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
n‘/j—\ TE IE/ % AlIL E 2‘% (%E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FHERT THET
Cash flows from investing activities RERETH2HERE
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE BEMREZNFK
plant and equipment (1,703) (1,864)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HWER&EZ A
plant and equipment 1 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries gk B A Al 31(e) - (96,402)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEHIE 32(e) - 22,187
Bank interest received 2 UERITAE 12 16
Net cash used in investing activities ARBRETEHZ2FRSE (1,690) (76,063)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETBZHERE
Capital contributions from non-controlling FEIERRER T E
interests 180 -
Proceeds from issue of shares of BITHBARKRGNOE
a subsidiary to non-controlling interests R IR 2 2 PTG FRIA - 3,400
Early redemption of promissory note HHERIRFED - (40,000)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities KRB, (FAR) BBEEEH =
FERS 180 (36,600)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R&RBESZEFEY FEM 52,074 30,421
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MA1ENBREERESEEY 39,013 8,005
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes, MNEEREEHE FHE
net (1,252) 587
Cash and cash equivalents at M2A3TENRERRESEEY
31 December 89,835 39,013
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBASEBYEBRDIN:
cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 89,835 39,013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31
March 2011, as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal
place of business is Suite 2101, 21/F, Chinachem Century Tower, 178
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company on 27 April 2018 and with the approval of the
Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 1 May 2018 and the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 20 June 2018, the English
name of the Company has been changed from “Megalogic Technology
Holdings Limited” to “New Western Group Limited” and the Company
has adopted the Chinese name “¥7 /& HT {8 £ E HBR A 7)" as the dual
foreign name of the Company to replace the previous Chinese name
‘RSN EEBRLA

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company referred to as
the “Group”) are: (1) the provision of integrated circuit (“IC”) solutions
and the design, development and sales of ICs; (2) money lending
business in Hong Kong (“HK”) through the provision of unsecured and
secured loans to customers, including individuals and corporations
under the provisions of the Money Lenders Ordinance; and (3) the
provision of investment and planning consulting service, real estate
agent, property management services and car parking management
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and all value are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

e BRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HZE2018F12A31BILFEE

—REH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued) 1. —REH
Information about subsidiaries MELARIZER
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at as 31 December MR2018F12A31H  ARAR 2K B A7)
2018 are as follows: FIEWT

Proportion of
ownership interest

held by the Company
AARREZEARERLH
Place of
Incorporation Issued Ordinary/
Name of Subsidiary and Operation Paid up Capital Directly Indirectly  Principal Activities
MR BRITEERZ
W B B AR mEhy BEARA EE BE TEZER
Megalogic Business Limited British Virgin Islands United States dollar 100% - Investment holding
(‘BVI') (“US$’) US$1 BEER
EREXES 1= ([%Ex])
(IERERES])
Megalogic Investment Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERREAHES I REER
Minilogic Investment Limited BV us$10 60% - Investment holding
(Note 33) (Fif5%33) ABRAES 10%7T REER
Excellence Steps Limited BVI USs$1 100% - Investment holding
ERREAHES 1% REER
Quick Wit Ventures Limited (‘Quick Wit") ~ BVI US$100 100% - Investment holding
EREXHES 100 =TT REZK
Megalogic Business Management HK HK$10,000,000 100% - Business consultant
Consultant Limited
RAGCEERBEARAA BB 10,000,000 7T $BER
Megalogic Investments Group Limited HK HKS$1 100% - Inactive
REREEBRATF Bk BT Tmex
Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ~ HK HK$1 100% - Inactive
REBREEERAT BE 1T TEex
Easy Loan Finance Limited HK HK$80,000,000 - 100%  Money lending
SEMBERLF BB 80,000,000/ 7T &
Easy Finance Assets Management HK HK$10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BB EEERERAT B 10,000,000/ 70 REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued) 1. —RER @
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) M8 ARl 2 EF (m)

Proportion of
ownership interest

held by the Company
RRARBEZEBERERL
Place of
Incorporation Issued Ordinary/
Name of Subsidiary and Operation Paid up Capital Directly Indirectly  Principal Activities
MBI BRTEERZ
HEAR AR R BEakx B# B IEER
MiniLogic Device Corporation HK HK$18,321,554 - 60%  Design, development
Limited (“MiniLogic HK") (Note 33) and sales of ICs
HEBRAERAR BE 18,321,554/ 7T FAHER
(MralmREE]) (H533) HEEKER
Megalogic China Development Limited HK HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
REIREERERAA B0 BT BREER
RBEAREEERERDA PRC HK$3,400,000 - 100%  Inactive
(Note (i) (B &E()) F 3,400,000/ 75 TEEE
Western Property Management (HK) HK HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
HEENEER (B8)ERLA B0 1B REER
Mg EEEEEERAA PRC Renminbi (‘RMB") - 100%  Property management
(Tl gk ]) H RMB1,000,000 services
(Note (i) (Bt (i)) ARE ([ARE]) MEERRS
AR ™1,000,0007C
M EEE Y X ERER AT PRC RMB300,000 - 51%  Property management
()| i E =R ] ) F AR #300,0007T services
(Note (i) ( P &£ i) ) MEEERE
Notes: B aE
[0) The registered capital was HK$50,000,000. As of 31 December 2018, [0) 1 fft & 78 A50,000,0007%8 7T © # £20184F
the paid up capital was HK$3,400,000 and the remaining registered 128318 B E A /A3,400,0007% 7T & 4
capital to be injected on or before 30 March 2026. T E EF20265F3 A30H sk Z ATVEA ©
(i)  The registered capital was increased from RMB1,000,000 to (ii) & AR AN E B A R #61,000,0007T
RMB5,000,000 during the current year. As of 31 December 2018, the # = A R #5,000,0007T © & 220184
paid up capital was RMB1,000,000 and the remaining registered capital 12A318 ' BN ERAAKREE,000,0007T
to be injected on or before 31 December 2035. R T & e 2035412 A31 Bk 2 AlE
Ao
(i)  The registered capital was RMB2,000,000. As of 31 December 2018, the iy  FEMEARARARE2,000,0005T - #ZE2018
paid up capital was RMB300,000 and the remaining registered capital to F12A818 ' B & A A AR 300,000
be injected on or before 2 May 2028. TC R R NI B ERN2028F5 A2H s 2 AlVE
Ao
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

=
mE

B 15 SRR MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
accounting principles and standards generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements below.

HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these new and revised HKFRSs to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

]

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. H

KA FTE] R RAEET & B B
HKFRSs % ) & % Al
(@) New and revised HKFRSs adopted (@) FIERMNZFTe] REEIETE S
MK mEER
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs REERRFEERNMBFREFTER
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements. PN AT 37 5] RASAE 5] BB B 5 3R
HAER .
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based BERUHERE WRG BEBT 78
Payment Transactions SERAIE2H REBHH BRI E
(BETAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with BRUHERE JER BB BB E
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts FEAIE4H B4R A4
CHES) B— R BB
FHEEAEIR
2BIA
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ARUBRE FHTA
ERFEIR
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ERUBRE KEEFEHEK e
HRIE15%
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from BERUHERE BEB B BEREE
Contracts with Customers AR 155, BIE15 K EEF
(BETAR) e
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property BB G EERENE

#8540
(B3%)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Bk (BB IEXGREMTKE
Consideration BREARE

ZEg)

~REF22%
Annual Improvements 2014-  Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28 2014 % BRI BREENE

2016 Cycle 2016F A5 FREBGTES

ZEE N £28% (BITX)
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 2, amendments to REAEETBRENDFERTIEA
HKFRS 4, amendments to HKAS 40 and Annual Improvements MEBTBHHREERF29 (B85
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the ) BETBHRELEREAR (&
preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the nature and FIAR)  BAGHERE4097 (&
the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described below. R AR) R20144F 22016 F HH =

FREGEIN  FE] RIGEFTE Y
BREEAMEERFZESHE AN
To
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RMAKMEIREBIIETREY
HKFRSs (continued) %8| EER o
(@) New and revised HKFRSs adopted (Continued) () FIERMZFEI REIETE R

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition
and Measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, impairment
and hedge accounting, which have resulted in the following
changes in accounting policies.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that
existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements. The group has recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening equity at 1
January 2018. Therefore, comparative information continues to
be reported under HKAS 39.

The Group’s trade receivables and loans receivables are subject
to HKFRS 9’s new ECL model and the Group was required to
revise its impairment methodology under HKFRS 9.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECLs which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. This resulted in an increase of the loss
allowance on 1 January 2018 by approximately HK$13,000 for
trade receivables. Note 21 provides further details about the
calculation of the allowance.

For loans receivables, the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL.
The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECLs that results
from default events on loans receivables that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, there is no
significant increase of credit risk for loans receivable and no
impairment loss was identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

(@) New and revised HKFRSs adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

While other receivables, deposits and prepayment and
bank balance and cash are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening impairment
allowances under HKAS 39 to the ECL allowances under

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

R RGBT ERRM
BHREER w0

(@) FrR#nz#E] REBRIEE

'/

ISR EZER ()
BEVBREEANFESR /28
TA] (#)

R E At B WROR - 2 IR R
IEL‘A&%E%?F@%&IE%%%’%L?
BB B 15 S R B OSE MY R E R
EC B EBRIREREE-

TRAREEFE G EREI9RH
MR E R AR RRRIBER BT TR

HKFRS 9. HERFIRMIBHEEBIBREY
BE o
Impairment
allowances ECL allowance
under under
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
at 31 December at 1 January
2017 Remeasurement 2018
20185
201745 1A1RRE
128318 RE ERMBRE
BERGTHER ZRIEIHM
SE395R 1Y HHEE
HERE BHtE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FET
Trade receivables EWE 5B - 13 13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

(@) New and revised HKFRSs adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on
controlling interests is as follows:

Retained profits

(Continued)

retained profits and non-

317

%

kil
A

(@) FxM Rl RGBT EE

BT EREM

Bl (@)

Y

B R sR & 2R (@)
ERUKREEREISE L/
TA/ (®)
BEEEBNEIRE LA Eo% Y
R R IR Y 2
—F :

R &7 i 7

Retained Non-controlling

profits interests
REEF
HREHEF FERES
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHET
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RRERL ST HEREI958
under HKAS 39 R2017F12 A31 H &8 4 % 3,582 2,699
Recognition of ECLs for trade RAR S B M 15 E £ R B0 R
receivables under HKFRS 9 BB ZEFMBEHEERBE ®) (5)
Balance as at 1 January 2018 RIEE BB HRE LR ER
under HKFRS 9 201841 A1 H B4 84 3,574 2,694
Other than the above, there is no significant impact on the fr LB BEERMEBY KRS

Group’s financial position and financial result upon the adoption

of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

(a)

New and revised HKFRSs adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”,
HKAS 18 “Revenue and related interpretations”. HKFRS 15 has
established a five-steps model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at the amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

HKFRS 15 applies to the contracts with customers for the
following transactions:

- Sale of goods;

- Provision of application specific integrated circuit (“ASIC”)
services;

- Provision of property management services; and
- Rental income

Interest income will continue to be accounted for in accordance
with HKFRs 9 “Financial Instruments”.

A MWK M ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. &

HE2018F12A31B L FE

MM REBTEEM
BHREER w0

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RANEFEI R LEITEEBY
HKFRSs (continued) i% ﬁ & 2% /E\IJ (&)

(@) New and revised HKFRSs adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standards recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits (or other components in equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group can elect to apply the standard using the
full retrospective method with certain practical expedients that
most of the contracts begin and end within the same annual
reporting period and/or completed at the beginning of the
earliest period presented.

HKFRS 15 introduces a five-steps model when recognising
revenue:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: |dentify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking
into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their
customers.

Based on the assessment of the Group, the adoption of HKFRS
15 from | January 2018 has resulted in changes of accounting
policies of the Group, however. it does not have significant
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognition of the
Group, and no adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2018 have been made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MWK M ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. KMFEIRBIETERBEH
HKFRSSs (Continued) BREER @

(@) New and revised HKFRSs adopted (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine the
date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation
where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability.
The interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of
it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability
(such as deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the entity
must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. The interpretation has had no
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Group’s
accounting policy for the determination of the exchange rate
applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or non-
monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance provided in
the interpretation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B HwRMEE (8)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective new and revised

HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Definition of a Business’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Annual Improvements 2015-2017  Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,

Cycle

HKAS 12 and HKAS 23'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MWK M ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. KMFEIRBIETERBEH
HKFRSSs (Continued) BREER @

(b) CAEARE e R AE 2 #TR] R

(b) Issued but not yet effective new and revised

HKFRSs (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in
the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease,
or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting
for leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. MG R KIETE BB
HKFRSSs (Continued) BHEED w0
(b) Issued but not yet effective new and revised (b) SHEMEERERZEHTR
HKFRSs (Continued) RIEFTE BT B REER
(#&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) HEBMBHREEDE165 [H
gl (#®
In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially BGHBAAESTREBEHEMS B
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. B SRS ER 16N E R T H
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating BeERE17TE HEASTE
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of BHEZEE- AL HHAES
leases differently. BEHEE D EAKEHEXMEM
B WEUTRAZRABEMEREA
As at 31 December 2018, the Group was a lessor and lessee MR2018F12A31H  AEE AS
under a number of leasing arrangements. In respect of those FHRELHEBE T 2B AREME
arrangements in which the Group was a lessee, a preliminary AN RAEBARKBEAZZELTH
assessment indicates that the arrangements will continue to mMs MESTERAB - ZELTHB
meet the definition of leases under HKFRS 16, and hence the BENAEBBMBHREERNFE165
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding BT 2HEFSE Rt AEB &
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low RTEZEHERRFERAREER
value or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. BEABE BIECEEBEEATBER
In addition, the application of new requirements may result EEBFI1FRBERAKERSE
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as BAFAE o AN a0 ESCFTR c FEFRET
indicated above. MEXSTEHGFE 2V REED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BRuHs] RRIERTEEY
HKFRSS (Continued) B3R EZER

(b) CAEARE e R AE 2 #TR] R

(b) Issued but not yet effective new and revised

HKFRSs (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply
to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(i) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation
is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESTHE @)

(Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HEEE @)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESHHE @)

(Continued)

(c) Business combinations and goodwill (c) ¥kcHEREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

92 New Western Group Limited Annual Report 2018

EBAMTIANBIES R - BEE
BIAKB RO R FEFE %
AFERAEEEENEERNKE
BH®RFE NEBERKKET
RIEBEAAENEE RALEHE
T AR AR U B8 T 42 ) e 0 i A A
EERM - RBERXBAMFT KK
EEEED AR FESARKET
AREAEEENRGLD SHER
WUHE T ey IR B R - AU AR
$E$H$HﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁE&W
DIEREENR BB ERER - IF
?k%\MWﬁﬁ@@&% D 1R
NV EFE WHHEBKRARESL
i 51 2 B 3 o

EAEEUB-BEBE aRE
ARG RYE A B EERE
MBBGN FHARKENERE
E&QE'MWﬁ@ B 58 R R

CEPEEOBEKETEIAR
mm RARITETLA

MEBEHIEBRET KEAMFHHE
MA@ R AR YRR KA
BEEME MEENEMNRES
BENBEE AR -

W BE 77 % e e m (E T SR AR B R IR
BAMONAFEER DBEREE
iﬁﬁmiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ$ﬁﬁ§'
RFPEBHRIEEANER DA
ﬁ%mm&%ﬂﬁfiﬁ?i'ﬁ
ZROEBEEEDET AR

HEBIEKAE NEERY
B FEREZNERSBERASE
ERAHENHEENETRAERS
SR CIVNSEERCE- RN g A = 3
FEEMMAEREZ RN EE-
M EEEMIER Eﬁ #ER R 7 AT U
BEEEMNAFE" éﬁ&ﬁé
ZEBEENERAERAEERE
W & o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the CGU (group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (group of CGUs) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of CGUs)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESHHE @)

(Continued)

(d) M- BMERRE @

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their estimated residual
value over the estimated useful lives on a straight line basis. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose during the reporting
period are as follows:

Computer equipment 30%-31.7%
Instruments 20%

Office equipment 19%-30%
Motor vehicle 25%-30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Leasehold improvement Over the lease term
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than goodwiill,
inventories and contract assets) to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3— based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on the first-in-first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

(f)

(9)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

0

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"), and fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), as appropriate.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient, the
Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
FVTPL, transaction costs. Receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

0

Financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified as follows:

° Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

° Financial assets at FVTOCI (debt instruments)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESHHE @)

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
° Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (equity
instruments)

° Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at amortised cost

(debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold the financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

0

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTOCI (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at FVTOCI if
both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest income,
foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses
or reversals are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income
(“ocr).
value change recognised in OClI is recycled to profit
or loss.

Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Y

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets designated at FVTOCI
(equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at FVTOCI when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at
FVTOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

0

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

0

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and
listed equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at FVTOCI. Dividends
on listed equity investments are also recognised
as “other gains and losses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate
derivative if: the economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to the host; a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at FVTPL.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out
of the FVTPL category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirety as a financial asset at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for
all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit

exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months
(@ 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
General approach (Continued)
At each reporting date, the Group assesses

whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When
making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is

determined to have low credit risk if:

(1)  The financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(2)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and

(8)  Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance with
the globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal
rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

108 New Western Group Limited Annual Report 2018

4., FESHHE @)

(hy £t T A (80
A BZE—NE—F—HE
FE AR BR (@)
(i) EBEEZHE (F)
— M50k ()

AEBETHERSE
ERBES AR LA

FA 2 Bl B B AR - 3F B H
AHEMNEBE UERE
BERREHRN S BA S
Bl s BB KR EF (s
BEERB -

WL —HRZES S
BMEEMBARRRESR
ETNREENSEMH A
TREENERREA-
THEEEARBNE
BERETIEFNAE
REE

(a) BITARERA
[Eo= N gl
2

(b) EK - PlENR B
BEEMS:

(c) ERABBAKA
ERmE AN
RN
BERA KRR |
BERAELEE
HiER T g E
=40k £i2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables other payable and accruals and amount
due to a non-controlling interest shareholder.

110 New Western Group Limited Annual Report 2018

4., FESHHE @)

(hy €M T A (@)

A BZ

Z-NF—-A—-BiE

FE AR BR ()

(i)

(i)

EHEEZBE (&)
BEHR

T EEEABE RN
MEKEZEREAH
BESAEERTEHE
ABERDOFZEED
HEEBAUTHEER
AR AEEEAMS
B A ERSEER
BER -REBTET X
AEBTGEREER
B2 BE NS ER
SHAMREERANE
HAME & B 18 T o A 1R
B-ASBCDREEE
REEERERET
AR - 3 B R
B/ EEBERIRS ER A
EUHERELFE-

THAE
R E
SRAGERYFERE
DERBRATEETA
EamemaBd BEX
NAGE R B FE - 5
TER AR B A R 15
EABEPTANTAT
B (fH&a#E) -

FELMAEBVFRER
FEERER &ﬁﬁ?%%m

o 18 SR A K FE A R
E!'JJTE?EIB%E&JTE{EX%
DN

AEENEHABERR
e E 5 B0 H A &
1 B2 A B R B AN —

i IEPE IR 2 AR SR 2 3K
IH o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9
are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial liability as at FVTPL.

AL
W

BB ®mRME (B)

FORTHEYEARENDED31DECEMBERQmS
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4., FESTHE @)

(hy €I A @
A B=ZE-NF-A—HiE
P& AR BUR ()
(i) ZHEE(E)
HiZTE
EREENFEIURR

MAMERERRAT 2018F8H 414

BEATHDEBR:

B FEEFAERL
EHMAE

BRAFEEFABRED
THABERFBIERESR

e BB ERRY) P E
REEERBAFEE
ARG ERARG-

SHAaBEMNAERNEHEA
BoOmES Alenid
BEIEEE -ZD BN
BIEAREEFTE] A 3E
BEERHHER(EXR
REBUHREERSE

O )R zH AT A
TEsRMIAE- B2
RN STETEND A
BEEEE MMIET

BB DT EBIER

RN TR E BIE
AFEEFAABEND
BEBEERNTERE
EI RERTEEEYS
HELERFIRNZE
Hv%a o AR B I R 35
EEMeRAaBEREA
FEEABRE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included as finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

Y

Financial assets

Before 1 January 2018, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9, but has elected not to restate
comparative information. As a result, the
comparative information provided continues
to be accounted for in accordance with the
Group’s previous accounting policy. The Group
classified its financial assets into the following
specified categories: “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” (“FVTPL") and “loans and
receivables”. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESHHE @)

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

(Continued)

(i) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than these financial
assets classified as at FVTPL.

(i) Financial asset at FVTPL
Financial asset is classified as at FVTPL when

the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESTHEE m
(Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (hy Rt T A @)
(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 B) MR=ZZFE—NE—HB—HA
(Continued) iR BUR ()
(i) Financial asset at FVTPL (Continued) (i) R FEGFAEZZE
BEE (&)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: WaHBETIIER  Ble

MEENHERFEESR:

. it has been acquired principally for the e WBAMETEZEEM

purpose of selling it in the near term; or BRTAE KT
&k

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of e RULTHREH

identified financial instruments that the Group RASEEBEE

manages together and has a recent actual BE#Ne®

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or TEHAAEMH—Z

o ML ERA
BREHERNME

=K
. it is a derivative that is not designated and e HAETEERE
effective as a hedging instrument. BiEREHIEA

WOTAETH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
(Continued)
(i) Financial asset at FVTPL (Continueqd)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial asset at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 4(g) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESHHE @)

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

(Continued)

(v)  Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets other than those at FVTPL are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
(Continued)

V)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
(Continued)

V)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(Vi)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(vii)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group (including trade
and other payables) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

©)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 and
before 1 January 2018

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

©)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 and
before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i

0)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0)

(k)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of pervious years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
company or the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold or services provided in the normal course of
business, net of returns and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Revenue from the sales of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ designated location which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts

Revenue from fixed-price contracts for the provision
of ASIC Service is recognised under the percentage
of completion method, which is based on the services
performed to date as a percentage of the total services to
be performed under the relevant contract.

Revenue from the provision of total solutions for
information security services

Revenue from the provision of total solutions for
information security services is recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract under which
revenue is recognised in the accounting periods upon
services being rendered. The stage of completion of a
transaction is determined by services performed to date
as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Revenue from the provision of property
management services in the PRC

Revenue from property management services in the
PRC included property management fees and property
consulting service fees are recognised when services are
rendered in accordance with the terms of the agreements
and value-added services is recognised when services are
rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Revenue from the provision of property
management services in the PRC (Continued)

The Group are entitled to retain the full amount of received
property management fees on a lump sum basis. By
receiving such the property management fees, the Group
shall bear expenses associated with, among others,
staff, cleaning, garbage disposal, gardening, security
and general overheads covering the common areas.
During the term of the contract, if the amount of property
management fees the Group collected is not sufficient to
cover all the expenses incurred, the Group is not entitled
to request the property owners to pay the shortfall.
Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
as revenue the full amount of property management fees
the Group charged to the property owners and property
developers when services are provided, and recognises
the expenses as costs of services the Group incurred in
connection with performing our services.

Revenue from rental income under operating
leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

130 New Western Group Limited Annual Report 2018

4., FESHHE @)

(0

Y == HERR (@)

(iv)

RENPERERDEEE
AR B W 2 (40)
AEHGIME  ARBEERRF
HEWBRMWEEEEN S
HER - WRMEEEER
AEBSAESR (BB
B)AEAKRBEMET )5
BmRERE BE RER
—REEFAAENER -1
BRI 5 A S B AT AR
MYEEEEZSHEIENAX
NAEEN—RX  AEH
WEEMBREEXN R
ER AN HEBHHmE
AEBREHREE S AE
B 3 R R R W
MYMEETEEND A HEE
RAEUER - I A AR B (R
T P 2E A B9 IR 7% X 7 i 3R
RIS~

REKEHEHES WE

REHEBR T zREEES W
ATREERREZHEAN
REBIHHTARBSE

7
R o

R 2 WA

B AT 2 B0 B 1 B T
EESZREREAS RER
ERME (IR EERG
FHAKEMGBTRRRS W
ANERMREZEENRE
FEMMAEEE) RETe



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plan

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (‘the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF scheme vest
immediately. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in fund under the
control of trustees.

The PRC subsidiary of the Group also participates in a
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme (“the PRC
Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities whereby the PRC subsidiary
is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefit scheme. The Group has
accrued for the required contributions which are remitted
to the respective local government authorities when
the contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension obligations
payable to the retired employees covered under the PRC
Schemes.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. The Group
has no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits beyond the contributions as described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(if)

(i)

Termination benefit

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

For share options granted under the share option scheme,
the fair value of the employee’s services rendered in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense and credited to share option reserve under
equity. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted at the grant date. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that is expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve over the
remaining vesting period.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share, if any.

Leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases. Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Lease should recognise the aggregate benefit of
incentives as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

(@)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange reserve.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(A) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MWK M ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESTHE w0
(Continued)
(q) Related parties (Continued) ( BEEEAL @
(B) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions B FTEEMUTEHEESHR
applies: RERE:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () EBEREASEAFR —%
group; EINE =

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) XE—EBRSEEZ
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow BE QAN EE QA
subsidiary of the other entity); HE—EBENT AR

NN ESI =N
5

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iy BEREASEAR—F
same third party; ZHZEERA:

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy R—ERBAEE=-FE
other entity is an associate of the third party; QR ME—EE

BE=ZFZHBEDE

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) BERBAAEENEASE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity EE@E-zERE 2 EER
related to the Group; F 7% 37 BE B 12 7R A AT

2l

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) EER AR T
person identified in (A); il ok B A 1 %IJ ;

(vij) a person identified in (A)i) has significant influence (i) AWFTREALTHER
over the entity or is a member of the key %ﬁiﬁ%%i RERE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent (XKZEEBERF) ZI
of the entity); and EEBREK % 53

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZEENEANATEERH
part, provides key management personnel services o 2EMKER
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. AMASEERAEEREZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n Segment report

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
information that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MWK M ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. E K=t ¥ B & &5

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
period.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation management estimates
the useful lives of various categories of property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of assets of similar nature and functions. The Group
will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives are different
to those previously estimated, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

(i) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. For the purposes of impairment reviews, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The value-in-use calculations primarily use cash
flow projections based on five years financial budgets approved
by management. There are a number of assumptions and
estimates involved in the preparation of cash flow projections for
the period covered by the approved budgets. Key assumptions
include the expected growth in revenues, timing of future capital
expenditures, growth rates and selection of discount rates to
reflect the risks involved. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgment is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash
flow projections and therefore the results of the impairment
reviewed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. E K=t ¥ B & &5
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(i) FHGEBENERE

(iii) Provision for ECLs

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4, ECLs are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECLs
for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when
its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase
in credit risk in assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Group takes into account qualitive
and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.

Calculation of loss allowance

When measuring ECLs, the Group uses reasonable and
supportable forward looking information, which is based on
assumptions for the future movement of different economic
drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default.
It is based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECLs.
Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default
over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes
historical data, assumption and expections of future conditions.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MWK M ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. E K=t ¥ B & &5

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(iv) Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgment and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and the allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
executive directors and certain senior management (collectively
referred to as the “CODM”) that make strategic decisions. Information
reported to the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of goods or
services delivered or provided.

The CODM considers that the Group has three reportable operating
segments from continuing operations:

- IC business — design development services income and sales of
ICs;
- Money lending business — interest income; and

- Property management business — management services income
and rental income.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired a property
management business in the PRC on 20 January 2017 and disposed
an information security business on 28 June 2017. The segment
information does not include any amounts for the discontinued
operation which are described more details in note 32.

The CODM regularly reviews the nature of their operations and the
products and services. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE M ERRME (B
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31ALLFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuc 6. 7 MER ()
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from INTARRIUZEREE D BE DA E
continuing operations and assets and liabilities by reportable operating FEREEFWERERNEERARE
segments: 2T
(i) Segment results () DEBEE
2018
20185
Money Property
IC Lending Management Total
SRER HE NEER &t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TR TR TR
Segment revenue 2 s
Revenue from external customers REIARFMME 16,611 20,430 39,287 76,328
Segment results FHEE (2,559) 8,038 16,911 22,396
Bank interest income |TFEHA 12
Corporate administration costs CETHRA (3,949)
Profit before tax from BRHAIREFELE
continuing operations £ 28R 18,459
Income tax expense FEHRAS (3,938)
Profit for the year from REFELCLER
continuing operations ZERBH 14,521
Segment assets ITBEE 9,090 158,173 33,783 201,046
Unallocated assets AOEEE 139,782
Total assets HEE 340,828
Segment liabilities PHERE 3,824 5,916 3,982 13,722
Unallocated liabilities AHEBRE 314
Total liabilities meE 14,036
Other segment information HittaBER
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRETE
plant and equipment 1,132 296 57 1,485
Additions to property, plant and REWE BFE K&K
equipment 1,605 44 54 1,703
Other material non-cash items HttEAFRLER
Provision for slow-moving BERBRTERE
and obsolete inventories 69 - - 69
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EEFR @
(i) Segment results (Continued) () 7PEBEE @)
2017
20175
Money Property
IC Lending Management Total
EMER i MEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIT THT FET
Segment revenue 2
Revenue from external customers RENREP Mz 19,639 19,676 36,610 75,925
Segment results AEHEE (2,907) 12,228 16,990 26,311
Bank interest income |ITFEHA 1
Finance cost HBER (857)
Corporate administration costs PETHAAR (9,204)
Profit before tax from BREAIREHELE
continuing operations B2 16,251
Income tax expense FEHAX (6,386)
Profit for the year from REBELCLER
continuing operations ZEREH 9,865
Segment assets PHEE 9,952 153,493 21,036 184,481
Unallocated assets AOEEE 140,943
Total assets HEE 325,424
Segment liabilities PHEE 2,208 4,297 4,545 11,070
Unallocated liabilities AOEEE 1,013
Total liabilities F=E 12,083
Other segment information Hit o &R
Depreciation of property, ¥ BERIENE
plant and equipment 1,148 312 45 1,505
Additions to property, plant and REME BFER&
equipment 1,636 62 137 1,835
Other material non-cash items HttEAERLER
Reversal of provision for slow-moving 74 & i8I 7 & Bl
and obsolete inventories e 945 - - 945
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated A E2HzHEREgINATFEEA
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales ZWa - B E2018F 12 A31H L FE
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). I EBEHE (20176 - F) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Segment results (Continued)

Segment results represent the profit earned/incurred by each
segment without allocation of other income and corporate
administration costs including directors’ emoluments, investment
and other income, other gains and losses, and income tax
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposed of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

Information about major customers from
continuing operations

No information about major customers from continuing
operations is presented as no single customer individually
contributed to over 10% of the Group’s revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Geographic information from operating
operations

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The geographical location of customers is based on
the location of the customers, irrespective of the origin of the
goods or services. The geographical location of the non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in the
case of property, plant and equipment. The Group’s revenue
from external customers by geographical location of customers
and information about its non-current assets (other than loans
receivables) by geographical location of the assets are set out
below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ?HEH @
(i) Geographic information from operating (i) REXLK 2HIBER (@)
operations (Continued)
Revenue information from external customers REMABZEFHRZER
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
HK (place of domicile) B (FEH) 25,979 25,331
The PRC, excluding HK and Taiwan FETARERELAE 48,093 48,599
Korea 825 94 373
Taiwan =0 159 153
Russia k7 iy 1,378 1,465
The United States of America e 624 -
Others E b 1 4
76,328 75,925
Non-current assets information (excluding loans FRBEEER (EWERR
receivables) )
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
HK (place of domicile) BE (EEt) 137,661 137,999
The PRC, excluding HK and Taiwan FEABEEEEREE 227 341
Taiwan = 3,004 2,362
140,892 140,702
REVENUE 7. W&

Revenue represents the net invoice value of goods sold after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, the value of services
rendered, and interest income from money lending business during the
year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations is

Wasts F KRR E REFTHIRER
EEEVNERFE REARENEE
REEBREEFOFEWRA - AEERE

SELEEBHREDHTMAT

as follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T

Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFAABEI Mz
Sales of ICs SHE R B 14,023 18,229
Provision of ASIC services IR HEASICAR 75 2,588 1,410
Provision of property management services R Y % E 1B RS 39,287 36,610

Revenue from other sources U =B Y 0l €
Interest from money lending business BEZEEHFE 20,430 19,676
76,328 75,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

8. OTHER INCOME

An analysis of other income from continuing operations is as follows:

Hft g A

KEFERLERFHE MU A DL

T~

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Interest income from: FEUA
- Bank deposit —RITEXK 12 16
- Others —HT 774 119
Sundry income FMIBWA 354 324
1,140 459

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hitlhzmz R E 18

An analysis of other gains and losses from continuing operations is as

follows:

REFELEEBNEMKE REERD

ranT

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME WENMERE
plant and equipment, net ZWE (EB) FE 1 ()
Exchange loss, net b 5 2 i85 58 (41) (150)
Waive of accumulated interest on HMERHER 2 RFHE
promissory note - 857
Impairment loss on JEWE SRR AR BT
trade receivables, net (Note 21) (MF5E21) 13 (136)
(27) 569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

10. FINANCE COST

11.

An analysis of finance cost incurred in continuing operations is as

10. M BEH

SEKERBMELNVBER DT

follows: T
2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Accumulated interest on promissory note A 2 BEHFE - 857
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11. BR B A1 & A

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at

AEERBFHELEEBHOR B AR

after charging: Bk
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(a) Staff costs (@ BIMEK
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BREEEHEME AL
— Salaries, allowances and — %<& R REYMREARN
benefits in kind 19,584 17,511
— Retirement benefits contributions —iRIRIE TG 81 H 5K 1,221 843
20,805 18,354
(b) Other items (b) HfbEHE
Auditor’'s remuneration 1% B 7 B
— audit services —FiT R 650 633
— other services —H AR 60 200
Cost of inventories recognised HRIEAR I M EK A
as expenses (Note 20) (FF7E20) 9,706 13,734
Design and development costs RET M EE A A 1,008 833

MAGERERRAT 2018F8H 445



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

12. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@) Remuneration of Directors

Directors’ remuneration for the year disclosed pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

12.EERER
1 B £

(@ EEM=

=Ny

HX =

A

R GEM_E 8 Bl & & 78 A A )
F383(N)ERA A (HEEEHZF
ER)ROFE2REBEAFENES

e

Year ended 31 December 2018

EZ2018F12831HILFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefits
Name of Director Directors’ fee in kind contributions Total
¥ BRR BIER
BEEnR E=He BYER &R &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTET FTET FET
Executive Directors HITES
ZHANG Qing (Chairman) RE(FE) - 2,392 18 2,410
SUNG Tak Wing Leo REE
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TB 4% ) - 2,386 18 2,404
LAU Mo 25 - 1,342 18 1,360
Non-Executive Director ¥ HTES
LIU Kam Lung BaiE 138 - - 138
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
CHEUNG Chi Man Dennis REX 178 - - 178
KO Yin Wai =EE 138 - - 138
CHIU Yu Wang Fi=h N 138 - - 138
Total B 592 6,120 54 6,766
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

12.EEREBREFHMAL
NN <€ ()

(@) EEME (@)

12. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(@) Remuneration of Directors (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F12A318 L FE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

and benefits benefits

Name of Director Directors’ fee in kind contributions Total
e 2R RIKER
EEHE ik EMREF AR A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT TAT FET
Executive Directors iTES
ZHANG Qing (Chairmar) RE () - 2,361 18 2,379
SUNG Tak Wing Leo RIBE
(Chisf Executive Offcer) (71B#4%) - 2,366 18 2,384
LAU Mo ey
(Appointed on 12 May 2017) (F201745A12B EER ) - 829 12 841
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
LIU Kam Lung B 137 - - 137
YE Jian g
(Resigned on 31 August 2017) (FA20174F8 A31HEHE) 91 - - 91
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
CHEUNG Chi Man Dennis KEX 175 - - 175
KO Yin Wal aEE 137 - - 137
CHIU Yu Wang D 137 - - 137
Total ch 677 5,556 48 6,281
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

12. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 12.EERAEBRBEFMA L
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) BB 2 )
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration b) EEESHFMALTHME

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included 3 (2017: 3) directors of the Company, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12(a) above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining 2 (2017: 2) highest
paid individuals are as follows:

FR AEENTEZESFMAL
B BEARQFIE (20174F
SB)EZ HFMFAFRBIALX
B sE12(a)F « F A #8 ~24 (2017
F 22 ) BERHMALTNFINFE
[l

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHER FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMAEYRERN 1,516 1,393
Retirement benefits contributions RIRAE R ET B R 34 36
1,550 1,429

The remuneration of 2 (2017: 2) non-director highest paid
individuals with the highest were all within Nil to HK$1,000,000.

None of emoluments has been paid to these individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year (2017:
Nil). In addition, none of the directors of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year
(2017: Nil).

148 New Western Group Limited Annual Report 2018

Z2H (201 7THF 28 )3 E=H
BEeFHMATHTFHNTZEE
1,000,000 7T °

HHREEN AEBEWER LA
TX RS EASEMA SR EM
AREBERNERSIEABERAOHE
B (2017F - ) o fboh - HEmAR
BEERNTFARERRERELM
B4 (2017 : ) -



13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

An analysis of income tax expense from continuing operations is as

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

13. R BB X

KERBELEXBHNABHA DI

follows: T
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current tax B HRFA I8

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH 1,198 2,054
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMEH 2,655 4,332
Underprovision in prior years BEFERHBTR 85 -
3,938 6,386

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% (2017: 25%) except that P91l & 218 and P91 EHT
152E[E are entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% according to the 78
BBOK BB ¥ P15 518 = IBUR which is applied to P91 &8 and PO
JI B HT 8B 2 [ during the year until 31 December 2020.

HZE2018F12A31BILFE  FEF
BRI G ERTEF 216.5% (2017
F:16.5% ) 5T & o H bt = fE R T s A
W IEEASRECEMEREERNHE
IREFTH-

RIBERBECEMEH ([REMER])E
REEMBRERRGH  PEKNEQ
A Z TR B25% (20174 :25% ) - P9l
B ETEE R )| B T EB EE EBR AN o A
P9 1 R H 88 K PO ) 1| gk B 98 2= B A AR IR 7R
HAHABECEMSHEEREZEHE
Ar15% 8 EBREEE2020F 12 A 31
E| o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates are as follows:

EHREX @m

REBGERRERAR REKRE DM E QA
A 1 BOA A I 2 BR B A& DA E B R A
HeBBARS BEERRXFAEZHR
HRAXHEREAT

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Profit before tax from continuing operations FHE L SR BT AT &= 5 18,459 16,251
Tax at the statutory tax rate AT ERGTENTIE 2,533 4,084
Underprovision in prior years BEFERBEIR 85 -
Expenses not deductible for tax PAEIE T A HUR R 354 257
Income not subject to tax BARBIA - (1)
Tax losses not recognised RIERMIAEE 966 2,046

Tax charge from continuing operations REBNEAEREFEL S

at the effective rate EBBET 3,938 6,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 14. B R IEREETK

Disposal of information security business HEEMRLZEK
On 25 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase B2017F 48258 AE BT —1H
agreement to dispose of Maximus Venture Holdings Limited and its B B % #& WA I & Maximus Venture
subsidiaries (collectively “Maximus Group”), which carried out all of the Holdings Limited &z K& 2 7] (#18
Group’s information security business. The disposal was completed [Maximus& B ) - HHXEAEEME
on 28 June 2017. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and BARELER -ZETXEBER2017F6
the calculation of the loss on disposal are disclosed in note 32(d) to the AosEZTM -BEKABEZ BEN KT
financial statements. EEBZAEFERERNYBEREM T

32(d) *
2017
20174
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue & 7,594
Cost of sales and services $HE K AR T A (1,728)
Gross profit EF 5,866
Other income H A 1
Other gains and losses E bz kB -
Staff costs BIRA (2,089
Depreciation and amortisation e R#E (362)
Operating lease rental — land and buildings geEHERe T RIEF (274)
Other operation expenses HEEERx (390)
Profit before tax BREL AT R 2,752
Income tax expense Frig R = (457)
Loss on disposal of operation (Note 32(d)) & EBHEE (MiFE32()) (1,833)
Profit for the year from discontinued FRARBECRILEEEKNER

operation 462
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 14.BRIEREER @
2017
20174
HK$'000
FET
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIELEXB ZFNAN
operation is arrived at after charging: = A BBk
(@) Staff costs (@ BIKAK
- salaries, allowances and benefits — e R REMET
in kind 1,998
— Retirement benefits contributions —iRRRE R R 91
2,089
(o) Other items (b) EfIEE
Auditor’s remuneration 1% £ R 57 B 38
2017
20174
HK$'000
FHET
The net cash flows from discontinued REDRIEEEEBHHF
operation is as follows: REemELT:
Net cash from operating activities RELLEEH 2 FES 5,126
Net cash from investing activities REREESH 2 FES 1
Net cash inflow FIRESRA 5,127
HK cents
gl
Loss per share: S EE:
Basic and diluted, from the EARMBE REE KL
discontinued operation (Note 14) 2T (FsE14) (0.04)
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DIVIDENDS

No dividends was declared or paid during the year ended 31

December 2018 (2017: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share are based on the profit/
(loss) attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during

the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

15

16.

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

Ll Hﬁ l%\

HZE2018F12A31HILFE WES K
BT AT E (20174 1 &) o

BRAER

SREABFIDIREAR DT EG ARG
BH UB18) RFME BT EBR R
FIBA A -

H E2018%F F2017F12H318 £ F
B AERBUEETEECET T AR

SRR R EERF YR TR A
=

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of KATEE AEML
the Company: AL (R :
From continuing operations REFELEE 15,529 10,298
From discontinued operation KA LIS EETE - (571)
15,529 9,727
Number of shares (thousands)
BROEE (TR)
Shares v
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & A E 217 @A
in issue during the year IEFEHEE 1,397,782 1,397,782
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17.9% BERRHE

Computer Office Motor Furniture Leasehold
Equipment  Instruments  Equipment Vehicle and Fixtures Improvement Total
BB IR BAERE AE BEARZE HEWMERE aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTHT TR FET FAT FHET THT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2017 R20171 7318 435 12,034 1,043 182 304 1,723 15,721
Acauisition of subsidiaries U B B A )

(Note 31(c)) (HH3E31(c)) 16 - 18 - - - 34
Additions RE 82 1,610 36 120 1 15 1,864
Disposal of subsidiaries HENHBAR

(Note 32(c)) (B5E32(c)) - - (910) (182) (103) (627) (1,822)
Disposals e (1) (226) - - ©) - (240)
At 31 December 2017 and 2017512 A31H &

1 January 2018 201851 A1H 522 13,418 187 120 199 1,11 15,557
Additions RE 56 1,591 34 - 22 - 1,703
Disposals HeE - - ©) - - - )
Exchange realignment EHRE ) - @ ) - @] 1)
At 31 December 2018 #2018F12A31H 577 15,009 210 114 221 1,109 17,240
Accumulated depreciation 2HE
At 1 January 2017 ®20171 818 351 9,865 598 136 125 851 11,926
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B B A )

(Note 31(c)) (PEE31(0)) 16 - 15 - - - 31
Charge for the year FAZH 82 1,123 127 48 44 292 1,716
Eliminated on disposal of HEMBARREH

subsidiaries (Note 32(c)) (Fi5E32(0)) - - (632) (159) (60) (281) (1,132)
Written back on disposals R ERED (1) (226) - - (1) - (238)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017E12A31E K

1 January 2018 20181 A1H 438 10,762 108 25 108 862 12,303
Charge for the year FAXM 58 1,110 57 28 38 217 1,508
Written back on disposals R ERRE - - ©) - - - ©)
Exchange realignment ERRE ) - @ @ - U] )
At 31 December 2018 #2018%F12A31H 495 11,872 154 51 146 1,078 13,796
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2018 #2018F 124318 82 3,187 56 63 75 31 3,444
At 31 December 2017 ®2017412A318 84 2,656 79 95 91 249 3,254
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MWK M ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

18. GOODWILL 18. &

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET

Cost and carrying amount RARREE
At 1 January M1 A1R 137,448 27,280
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 31(d)) U BB B A A (F9EE31(d)) - 137,448
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32(d)) HEME AR (MFE32(d)) - (27,280)
At 31 December M12A31H 137,448 137,448

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated
to property management business in the PRC CGU in 2017 for
impairment test.

Property management business in the PRC CGU

The recoverable amount of the property management CGU has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections from financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 25.2% (2017: 29.8%) and cash flow beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.6% (2017: 2.9%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the property
management CGU as at 31 December 2018. The following describes
each key assumption on which the management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted turnover — Budgeted turnover is based on the expected
growth rate of the market in which the CGU operates and the
expected market share of the CGU.

7 2 R (BRI B

EBEHMKRBRESEER2017F K
TRCMEEEEGRSEEEMIAE
BB R o

FPEEEEERREELEN
#@%ﬂiiﬁiF$ SR A RE SR TY
WBIBFEREBEFE R AETE - ZTHE G E
ERdesfEEEM AR RERFHM
ZHBEEMBIE 2B REER RS
= TR R R A 2 B IR % /25.2% (2017
F:208%) MAFHBMEZRERE
Bl FA2.6% (2017F :2.9% ) 2 K X
E ) HE B -

#2018 12 A31H Eﬁéﬁ%%%i@fﬁi\

EXfEUFEAEERCELHESR-

TwilEEEZRHEB S R=ETE0#E TT?;ﬁ
BRENRSEEERE:

BHEAXF -RELXERBEREES
BUMEKEMENERERXRES
ELEBEMNBEMMSEREERME-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. -FE"]-EE.E (#8)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) [EENAEREAE §)
Property management business in the PRC CGU PE ¥ EBREBRREEEEN
(Continued) (&)
Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to determine the value BHEEMNX-BHEENEDREEER
assigned to the budgeted gross margin is the average gross margin HFEAMFRNFTHENEFE  WIRE
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased for TEfM R RTEHMIGER ML M-

expected efficiency improvements and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects AR E PR REBH AN A R AB

specific risks relating to the CGU. HIReEL BT ERR-

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external DEZETEREZEBEAINLE R KR

information sources. — %o

Based on the annual impairment test performed, no impairment loss BIEFTETZ2FERBENR X271 H

has been provided in relation to the property management CGU. The ARMEERHRSEXAENFIRBE

recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than its carrying amount. EE-REEAEM 2T RE®EAR
HEEHE -

Information security CGU ERRLZREEEEN

On 25 April 2017, the Group entered into sales and purchase M2017F4R258 A&EEFL—HE

agreement to dispose of Maximus Group, which carried out all of the FE#HEMaximusE @ Ef EAE

Group’s information security business. The disposal was completed FTEEMREZEK - ZBEHEER

on 28 June 2017. Details of the disposal are set out in note 14 to 2017F6A28H EX - HEEFEMNFE

the consolidated financial statements. The corresponding goodwill BN AY BRI 14 - FHENFE

were derecognised in the consolidated financial statements upon the A H B Maximus e B 8 55k L 12 il 7 i

disposal of Maximus Group resulting in loss of control. RERE B ISP 4R IEFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 19.

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests are set out below:

Percentage of

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

A BRI 2 RENEA 2
REMT -

Profit/(loss) for the year

equity interest held by allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERER AETFHERER
KB AR AR HHEZERLH FRER/ (F8) L FERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
2018% 20174 2018% 20174 2018% 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT TET TET
MiniLogic HK (note (i) elmBES (M) 40% 40% 1,017 (432) 482 1,504
711 BT IR EE 2 (note (i) 7)1 AU 2 (B EG)) 49% N/A 13 N/A 180 N/A
TER TER TER
Notes: BEE -
i) MiniLogic HK became an indirectly-owned subsidiary in October 2017, (i) WAIRBIEBR2017F10 Ak AREENE

(i) POl g ATt E#E = was incorporated in May 2018 and no comparative
figures is available.

2.

() TR R 201845 A SE MAK L B
TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

19. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 19. B2 EBEMBLAZER
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING FEREDS

INTERESTS (continued)

The following table summarised the financial information of the above
subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any intra-company

TREERIA EH B AT S AR - B
TS A A 7 R 1T T 8

eliminations. AIA) & 58 ©
MiniLogic HK
7911 i 0 HEABNES
2018 2018 2017
201845 201845 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHx FHET
Current assets MENVEE 488 5,868 7,201
Non-current assets FRBDEE 4 3,171 2,698
Current liabilities mBaE (124) (7,835) (6,139)
Equity attributable to owners RAREAR AEEER
of the Company 188 722 2,256
Non-controlling interests FEIE PR i 180 482 1,504
Revenue Wz 357 16,611 19,639
Total expenses s 4a %8 (330) (19,154) (22,536)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERA/ (FBR) 27 (2,543) (2,897)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FEREWRS(FX) B8
for the year 2 (2,543) (2,897)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests AT IR ER 2 RS - - -
Net cash from operating activities KERSHHE 2R T8 144 1,055 1,644
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMACESFE (5) (1,605) (1,635)
Net cash from financing activities MEEEAME RS FE 342 - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Re kAT FEY
cash equivalents 2/ CRd)FE 481 (550) 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MWK M ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &

2018 2017
201845 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAEIT
Raw materials B 1,285 655
Work in progress R m 1,513 1,520
Finished goods X Gh 2,203 2,572
5,001 4,747

Less: Provision for slow-moving and obsolete 3 : 7 4 [ i85 17 & #445
inventories (1,249) (1,180)
3,752 3,567

21.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group made a
provision of approximately HK$69,000 for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories (2017: reversal of provision of approximately HK$945,000).

The above amounts were included in “cost of inventories recognised
as an expense” for the respective years.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

HZE2018F12A831HILFE AEEE
oA S KB BT B B E 40 569,000 T
(20174 : B # B 47945,0008 7T) °

LRERFAAZTFENHERIERAX
MEEMRA] -

B E 5 fR K

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTERT FAT

Trade receivables JEUE ZBR K 5,763 4,107
Impairment BB - -
5,763 4,107

The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit
checks on potential customers before granting credit. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The
Group’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored
by management. The maximum credit risk of such financial assets is
represented by the carrying value of asset.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
assessment process to assess the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits of the customer. Credit limits attributed to
customers are reviewed by the management regularly. In determining
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change
in credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the end of the reporting period.

AEECDHERE  BRELEEAEE
EEPETEEFREES AKBEMERE
REREERFNUFTETZS ME
EBEENSIEAKEMEYNRRNREY
FINEENE - HBESREENESE
ERBRAEEMNREE-

REMREAHEP 28 AEBERAE
EEMEEFUAFGAEEEPNEEEZ X
EAEEFHNEERB -BLTEFPNEE
REHMEEEBEH RN BEEEKE SR
ROA W ERER NEEEZEEA AR
HEEERERSHREBLEZRREE
BEREMEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Past due balances are reviewed by senior management.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

Ageing analysis

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from “cash on
delivery” to 30 days to its trade customers. The following is an ageing
analysis of trade receivables at the end of each reporting period,

21.EWE F R (@)

AREBE AR E 2 IR E HERR RS
W ERIEEREHERETE R AKREE
FERR SREEESRMARGEH K
B Ept K EWE SRR RIS A ER
BERaREMEERAEE BEE SR
BT R

AR AT

AEBEBEREESEPRHIEIM
FES0ORMEEH  UTEREREH
REBZAHRANKBERE2IINE

presented based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance: WE 5 R BRE DT
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
0-30 days 0-30H 3,911 2,743
31-60 days 31-60H 909 918
61-90 days 61-90H 705 446
More than 90 days BiE90H 238 -
5,763 4,107

The movements in the loss allowance for

impairment of trade

FURESERZBEBERREGEZS W

receivables are as follows: N
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January Mm1H1H - -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 HNBERBVBMEERER 2B 13 -
At 1 January (restated) B1A18 (KE7)) 13 -
Impairment loss, net BB EIEFER (13) 136
Amount written off as uncollectible WiE AEAKE R - (136)
At 31 December M12A31H - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type
and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one year and
are not subject to enforcement activity.

Based on historical settlement records, most of the Group’s trade
receivables were within 90 days past due but not impaired, the
expected credit loss rate were 0% accordingly.

No loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables as of 31
December 2018 is recognised as amount is immaterial.

A MWK M ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

21. EWWE Z BRI (=

REEZBUHHREEDFEISE

BZ2018F12H31HLLFER
B {E

BB B IR B R R TR E D
W A EENEEEE - BERDER
EREEUBEERNSEES S HAER
(BN - & QRER - B ER R F& N
REREAEBEERRVAMRELD
B ) R B B T o T E R R
R SEEBERANRS BTSN
BB EIE A RN R R AT 5
HEANAERTEER - — KM s &
WEZEFRNBHBBE —FRIBAZR
1A 38 51 3177 75 B B T LA 8

REBEERCE AKEEXNBD K
B 5 8RN0 H M BB R AR MERE -
EHEEBEEELR0% -

HREREMTEE  HEl£2018F 124
SR EERREWRE S ERIORENE
BEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
31 December 2017

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as of 31 December 2017
that were not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
under HKAS 39 is as follows:

21. EWWE ZERF (=)

RIEE B WK RS ERFE395;

BZ2017F12B31BIEFEW
BB

BIEES G ERFE395 B E2017F
12A31AMERE S ERNREK DT
KERSKHERERARE  FBEHOT:

2017

20174

HK$'000

FET

Neither past due nor impaired R BTN AR R E 855
Past due but not considered impaired B ERRIERE

1-30 days 1-30H 2,787

31-60 days 31-60H 465

4107

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
were of the opinion that no provision for impairment under HKAS
39 was necessary in respect of these balances as there had not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

162 New Western Group Limited Annual Report 2018

R 380 H 7 RO (B HY B W B R R B A
BHERLEBENAREZ TILEFEHE-

BHERBRENEREZERFELAEE
ETBERMFGECENBIEFPAR -
2g) BRFEKDEE[/TREKE -
BARBEZTRRBARZEHEHRRE
ER G EREIRA B ERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

=%
22. LOANS RECEIVABLES 22. B E R

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loans to customers BRFZEEP 97,995 134,557
Accrued interest receivables JEM R F B 683 865
98,678 185,422

Analysed as: DA
Non-current assets EREBEE - 3,331
Current assets MEEE 98,678 132,091
98,678 135,422
Loans receivables are repayable according to repayment schedules, M2018F12A31H - BILEF BB ER
normally with contractual maturity between 6 months to 42 months as BRRAXREF AHNIEHA —KN Fo6ilE
at 31 December 2018 (2017: between 3 months to 12 years). Loans RAZE42(@ A (20175 : 3@ A &125) -
to customers bear annual interest rate ranging from 6.5%-18% as at R2018F12A31H MBFREMNER
31 December 2018 (2017: 6.5%-18%). BN F6.5%%E18% .2 F 7 E5 8 (2017

F:6.5%%E18%) °

All loans receivables were unsecured as at 31 December 2018. The MR2018F12A31H " FrEEWE R AE
secured and unsecured loans receivables as at 31 December 2017 AR - R2017F 12 A31 B B | I & &
were HK$16,519,000 and HK$118,903,000 respectively. IR E W E R D B A16,519,0008 7t &

118,903,000/% It °

The following is an ageing analysis of loans receivables at the end of INTAEREHREATHHEESNT
each reporting period, presented based on the remaining period to HAZ2Y 2 EREFRERER DT

contractual maturity date:

2018 2017

201845 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year 1F R 98,678 132,091
Over 1 year and up to 5 years iR E5F - -
Over 5 years FABSE - 3,331
98,678 185,422
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

EE,
22. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EWWE R (&)

The above balances are neither past due nor impaired. it A R 0 4 e B SR (B o
The Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit AEBEHEBRER ERFEHERAY
checks on potential customers before granting loan. BEEFPETEEEERS -
The loans receivables with the normal remaining period to contractual MR2017F12A3TBEEHR THEESLD
maturity date over 5 years as at 31 December 2017 were fully repaid FH HBBSFHNEKERERFREH
during the year. BiE-
For the purposes of impairment assessment, the loans receivables are RAAENEME AR EKERK
considered to have low credit risk as most of the loans receivables REEEBERBKEZRWEAEERE
were settled after the year ended. Accordingly, for the purpose of ERk Al BZEecEENRERT
impairment assessment for these financial assets, the loss allowance is BME FsrENEERESEEER
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. 12 AEHEEEIE-
In determining the ECLs for these assets, the directors of the RETZSEENEREEEFER A2
Company have taken into account the historical default experience, RIESEFRELENLCR ERADN
the financial position of the borrower, and considering various external MR MREASEZSeREE
sources of actual and forecast economic information, as appropriate, REENEBETGHHRANEOERR
in estimating the probability of default of loans receivables occurring T B R L AN E B R TR R A B R R
within their respective loss assessment time horizon, as well as the R(RMEERB) URTHEEEDLERE
loss upon default in each case. HEF R ESIE -
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the loans AEERA REBRNEFPER (BREF
advanced to customers which are fully secured by the properties FsmEFE28ER) NEERREER
held by customers is significantly multiplied by the properties held FrsElERmeWEHERBEE I
as collateral, with reference to the estimated market value of the K2R AEBEYEN2018F k2017F12
properties at 31 December 2018 and 2017. AS1B ZfhatmE -
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant RABZEsREEBERER H5
assumptions made during the current reporting period in assessing the s ATEH B E R B RN A RS B
loss allowance for loans receivables. NG A B o
Note 38(b)(iii) details the gross carrying amount, loss allowance as well MIEES8(b) (il HIZEEFRE D MEZSE
as the measurement basis of ECLs for loans receivables by crediting TRHEENBEREEISE BEBELE
rating grades. HEEENsTERE L
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22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued)

No loss allowance for loans receivables has been recognised as
amount is immaterial.

The Group’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are
monitored by management. The maximum credit risk of such financial
assets is represented by the carrying value of asset. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit assessment
process to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits.

In determining recoverability of loans receivables, the Group considers
any change in credit quality of the loans receivables from the date of
the loan was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

3. HAEWFRIE

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

22.EWE R (m)

HARERAITEXRN WA BEREKE
REREE -

EEESERASEMESNEAREE
HFINEEFIR -HHESREENR
BEERBRAEEMNKREME - REME
MFHEF A AKEERANBEERN
BEFAFHEEEPNEREERZRR
EEEREE-

ErRKRERNTKROREER KNEH
EZEANARLEEREAEREHRE
WEREELARZMEMEE-

RERkAE
T RE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Deposit for purchase of raw materials RERMBEZES 392 318

Deposit for acquisition (Note) U hE 2% (FisE) - 1,000

Rental and utilities deposits for leases HozHeKkEERS 738 659

Prepayment for legal and professional fees EEREEERBENNRIE 104 190
Prepayment of utilities and insurance MEHEB ARBPKERRE

for property owner and tenant Z B ERE 405 342

Others il 269 104

1,908 2,613

Note: Since the acquisition of health supplement business was terminated on
15 January 2018, the deposit was refunded in January 2018.

Other receivables are non-interest bearing. None of the above assets is
either past due or impaired. The Financial assets included in the above
balances related to receivables for which there are no recent industry
of default.

Mt BRMRIEEREBRUKEEN2018F1 715
BRI #iZ & B R2018F1 AR M -

HEEFETHE L EERES
HIgORE - 5T A Ll 8 R O B 75 B B
AT B 3 8 46 R RC 8k ) JE MRGRIR B A ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24 RITHGBRER €

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less which are held with financial
institutions and carry interest at prevailing market rates. The average
effective interest rates of the Group’s bank balances are 0.08% and

ROTEHEHK IR SOER S EERR TSR
BERIBERAE=MEA I T RN
WITHH ARG B EH TR 12018
F K2017F12A8318 A £ BB 174

0.40% per annum, as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively. BMETFEHERENED A R0.08% &
0.40% -

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBT FATT

Cash at banks and in hand BITREFRS 89,835 39,013

At the end of the reporting period, the bank balances and cash
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$24,613,000 (2017: HK$5,488,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rate. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, presented based on
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period, is as follows:

RMEIR  REBAAREFENRIT
RN IR S %) 524,613,000 7T (2017
F 15,488,000/ 1) - AR B

HREBARHMER-

FHRRBITHREREREBRRITER

F) & F B F KRG8 - RTT

CEN X ER QI

T EELNEL BEERIFART

FE S & 5 &K

REFERSHREHRRER

HEIZ258

ENEZEROREDONET

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

0-30 days 0-30H 1,348 799
31-60 days 31-60H 275 493
61-90 days 61-90H 75 -
1,698 1,292

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled ERE ZERTEE R —MKRENRIAR

on 90 day terms.
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

26. H fth f& {3 & FE 5T KR

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Contract liabilities EHEE @) 231 -
Receipt in advance from customers FBREP 2 58 @) 1,189 1,206
Deposit received Blite 1,312 546
Accrued expenses EE T & A 2,522 3,053
Other payables H th & < 5RIE (b) 1,053 802
Amount due to a former director e —RIRIEZE S 2 5E (© 40 48
6,347 5,655
Notes: BfeE
(a)  Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January (a)  M2018F12A31H K2018F1A1HA %)
2018 are as follows: BEZFFBHOT:
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
20184 20184
12A31H 1H1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Short-term advances received from customers YWEUH B &P .2 57 B8 17018
Sales of ICs and provision of ASIC services ~ $#4% $2i E B & 42 HASICHR 7% 231 78

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

(¢) The amount due to a former director is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

) EHEMKEBETE

o

© BN—UAEEFIRERERER 28
WAREERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

27. AMOUNT DUE TO A HOLDER OF 27.
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(b)

recognised:

BN -—fFERESERE
ARZFIE

ZRERELAR RRAWBARERKESR-

28. I FE Bi B
(@) MAWELHHEEEREA

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Accelerated

f&:

R AT BAR R R ERHIELER B
(BE),/ BEEKBD ARERE
mm AEHINR ¢

tax Intangible  Unused tax
depreciation assets losses Total
nEB REYAB K
e BEERE %= &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T FHET FHET
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 387 301 (346) 342
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (14) (270) - (284)
(Credited)/charged to REEH ( ud‘)\)/
profit or loss kx 56 (31) (83) (58)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A31H &
1 January 2018 201841818 429 - (429) -
(Credited)/charged to REEF (5T A)
profit or loss B 79 - (79) -
At 31 December 2018 FA2018412 4318 508 - (508) -

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax loss
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$45,626,000 (2017:
HK$36,871,000) available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely. Deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of approximately HK$3,076,000
(2017: HK$2,598,000) of such tax loss. No further deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax loss due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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(b) RERWELEHAEE

M2018F12A31 8 A&EH K
EREECZHADABEEBR
#4) 545,626,000 7T (20174 ¢
36,871,000 7t) » 7] A MK
HARRBEF W Al ER AL
AEBERUEHEEBER
#497/43,076,000/% 7t (20174 :
2,598,000 L) 2 IREFIBEE
E o A 5K B BRI oK 2R F 2R - iR
WARBBEEEEREZELERE



(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 20. AR K ¥
Share capital (@ B’
Number
of shares Nominal value
BHEE H{E
‘000 HK$'000
T FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BROABTINEER
Authorised: EE:
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A831H
31 December 2018 K2018%12A31H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTEHE:
At 1 January 2017, R2017F1H1H
31 December 2017, 2017 12H31H *
1 January 2018 and 2018F1A1H &
31 December 2018 201812 HA31H 1,397,782 139,778

(b)

Movements in components of equity

() Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 72
of the consolidated financial statements.

Merger reserve arose as a result of the reorganisation
taken place on 20 December 2011 which represents the
differences between the issued shares and share premium
of MiniLogic HK upon group reorganisation and the nil-
paid issued of 380,000 shares of the Company which
credited as fully paid.

The statutory reserve represents the appropriation
of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the
relevant accounting rules and regulations of the PRC in
accordance with the relevant PRC laws until the PRC
statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital
of the relevant subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be
applied either to set off accumulated losses or to increase
capital.

(b) EZAEAREH

) A&KE
AN S R AR O FE 1 A O
CEXNES LERI) S
MBRRETZANG A HH
BERA -

Bk o>

201112 820 A EE M E
EMEHRERESEEEHE
MEERBEBENE BHITRM
RRM&EEBER NG URH
B& #7578 17 £9380,0000%
ARSI BB EHR M 2 &
EEE e

A E R IR IR AR R P BUR
REHENBEESF R
K 52 5] 81 Bk Bx B 1R O B A9
10% @ B = H BE E f# & 2l
2= 18 A B B 2 B GE A A AN &Y
50% R EERHBEA AR
MERFTEBEBRHIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continved) 29. IR A K 4 (&)
(b) Movements in components of equity (b) REZAREE (@)
(Continued)

(i) The Company @iy ZAAF

The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBEGEEZSAEXE D
FHERFREBOEEREHR
RERZEHER - A QRS E
BRI D RAFEF A
EFERMEBABOT

balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
[N igrip =] 2T &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT FHET
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 139,778 148,287 (8,524) 279,541
Loss and other FABEREMEAE
comprehensive fil 2
expense for the year - - (10,532) (10,532)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12831B K
and 1 January 2018 20181 A1H 139,778 148,287 (19,056) 269,009
Loss and other FABEEREMEAE
comprehensive fil 2
expense for the year - - (4,383) (4,383)
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12H31H 139,778 148,287 (23,439) 264,626

(c) EXEHE
NG E PR H A AN DA R N £ [E Bk

(c) Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the

Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. The Group considers the cost of capital and risk
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends, issuance of new
shares as well as the raising of new debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 May 2012 (“the Adoption Date”). Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years effective from 10
July 2012 of the scheme and will expire on 9 July 2022.

The purpose of the Share Options Scheme is to provide incentives
to the participants. The participants of the Share Option Scheme, as
absolutely determined by the Board, include:

(a)

any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive directors) of any member of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”);

any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity.

A MWK M ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

30. & I ST &

RAFFHR2012E5 168 ([#RMBH )
B —TERERAERT B ([ AERTEI]) -
BB TS m20129F7 A10B #£10F R
B BEE2022F7H9BE W -

BREASZENSEBEZ2EE-B
& c2EE(HDRAEFEERR
E) B

(a) AKBEFAKERARARANEERE
EHHQTEZEHE‘EE(Fﬁ&ﬁﬁ
B ZEAEER (T2 Bk
®E- “ﬁ.ﬂiﬂiﬂﬁ%%)’

(b) AEBFERKERARHEMIZKE
BEEZAMIFERTES (BEBL
JEHITEE)

(c) F"JZIKEIET"JEEE DR AERRE
BEBREHEMIRG 2 ERHE
[

(0) AKBEARERAREALRE
BB EMES:

(e) MARKEEMRMKE RBAREMZE
EEBREHFE HABEIEMRM
SXEZEMALTHER

() AEBEAKBERARREAZIRE
BERZEARRIAEEEMKE
RAHEARREERAEITEM
BrRZEABEAN R

(9 AEBEAKBERARREAZIRE
BERZEAERRBRERBER
E2EMBER (FEXRHEM)HFH
A&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. R REST & ()

The maximum number of shares in respect to which options may be RIEBRESTE AR E 2 BREMY
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of RO E R &Z D FBBHEMER
the issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting the EFEEBARREEITRAZI0%
Share Option Scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time provided ZERTBEREN ENREAGETE
that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued BRARRARREASHELBRAFE
share capital of the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ BATIRA Z210% © A T - 1R 45 B8 A% 4 &t
approval in general meeting. However, the total number of shares SIRAARMEMEMEEE R DA G KR
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted TEZ2HEREEITERN AT T
and vet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any ZHENEBBEARTERBERBEITR
other scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of 19 230% - RAER121E A M W | E
the shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares I ERATRE 2 BREREITER 7]
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any TETZRMEB NMSHEAZI21E A 5
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last M&E—RKEETRND21% RIEER
date of such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of GEM _E 7 5 Rl 48 fh 2K A A) B SR #HE XE BIE
the Company has been obtained in accordance with the GEM Listing RllEm o BRI 2 BB IR i R R
Rules. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of REB1IETT -

the grant of an option.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of BREVTEKLEHREREAZ10E
the option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be FRIEHEARNERTE MBARBES
determined by the Directors. The exercise price is determined by the BT -ITFEFHRESEET BEFEER
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of () the closing price T z&EmE: (\EREOEBRER
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on HEBEBIMTRRER LM 2
the date of the grant of the options; (i) the average closing price per ME: (BEREBREBHAES
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the XHERBRMNEBIMEAMER LA
five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the Hl z F U E S (i) kD EE

options; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31.

The refreshment of the Share Option Scheme mandate limit was
approved at the annual general meeting held on 27 April 2018, based
on 1,397,782,400 shares in issue as at 27 April 2018, the Company
was allowed to grant further options under the Share Option Scheme
at up to a total of 139,778,240 shares, representing 10.0% of the
shares in issue as at 27 April 2018 and representing 10.0% of the
issue share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and the
date of this annual report respectively, and representing 10.0% of the
issued share capital of the Company, as at the date of 2017 annual
report.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled, expired or lapsed
since 1 January 2018 and the refreshment of the scheme mandate
limit on 27 April 2018 and up to 31 December 2018. There were no
outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2017 and 2018.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 20 January 2017, the Group acquired entire issued share capital
of Quick Wit. As a result, the Group obtains control of the Quick Wit.
Upon completion of the acquisition, Quick Wit has become a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of
the Quick Wit and its subsidiaries (the “Quick Wit Group”) have been
consolidated into the financial statement of the Group.

Taking control of the Quick Wit Group enables the Group to explore
the opportunity of developing the property management services in the
PRC and to diversify the Group’s existing business.

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

30. B RESTE ()

31

EEERESSRE LRE R2018
FAA2THBTHREBF RS L
FEHL A I A2018F4527H B % 1T
1,397,782, 400 B A 5T - AR B ERF
RIEBRETSE - PREBERE &
% 4 H£iE1389,778,240 K fn - RER
2018F4H27HE # TR M H10.0% &
REARFDBIR2018F12 31 H LA
FHRAHBHITRAM10.0% A RKE
ARABR2017TEFRAPEHITRARN
10.0% °

H2018F1H1H Kk MR2018F4A27HE
FETEEELRERE E2018F 12 A 31
HiE BMETAERECERD 76
BYOH ~ B HR sk 2k i o PA20174F 20184
12A31H  IBEBRES X AFHE
i R AT 2 B AR o

EBast

201791 208 - A& E U B Quick
Witz 222 BITRA - Bt NEEE
1FQuick WithY 2 il # o Y2 B8 = 18 ¢ 5K
% Quick Witli B A el —BEEE2E
M B A A RQuick Witk H K & A 7
(TQuick Wit Bl ) 2 BB £ E B R E
TAREBE 2B BHRE -

H1S Quick Wit Bl 2 i Hl i (E A £ B 1S
NERERNTENMEEERBHERE
B AWEAEBERAEHZ T

MAGERERRAT 2018F8K 473



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(@) Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition-date fair value of
consideration transferred.

1.¥BKE6
(@) EEBRE

T AL 2 MR R e B B
AFE-

HK$'000

FAT

Cash "¢ 100,000
Promissory note LB 40,000
140,000

The consideration was determined at approximately
HK$140,000,000 based on () the business prospects of the
Quick Wit Group; (i) the property management contracts
entered/to be entered by the Quick Wit Group and the Quick Wit
Group’s future business plan; (i) the profit guarantee for the year
ending 31 December 2017 will not less than HK$14,000,000;
and (iv) the implied price to earnings ratio of 10 times as
indicated by the profit guarantee is in line with and lower than
most of the price to earnings ratio of companies listed on the
Stock Exchange principally engaged in the provision of property
management and related services.

According to the audited account of Quick Wit Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017, Quick Wit Group recorded
revenue and incurred a net profit before tax of approximately
HK$36,610,000 and HK$16,990,000 respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Therefore, the profit guarantee for
the relevant year has been met.

Since the acquisition, Quick Wit Group contributed
approximately HK$36,610,000 to the Group’s revenue and
approximately HK$16,990,000 to the consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue from continuing
operations of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 would have been approximately
HK$75,925,000 and approximately HK$9,865,000, respectively.
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#7140,000,0007% 7T &9 (K 18 T % (i)
Quick Witk B/ 551 = (ji)H
Quick Wt E 2 # Tl L8
2T A O U KQuick Witk B/
R E (1) E20175F12
A31H8 It F E 1T 41 14,000,000
BT REB T R (iv)ias TR E B
REOfSHEE MR R - HEIEH AT
MW EEREWEEE REBR
BZREIZRBAMAE—HRIE
NEBMBERMET -

B IEQuick Wit B # =20174F
12ABTALFE 2K EZEKE -
Quick Wit B R B £2017F12 A
SIHEFEHBREZTEERH
AT 4 F 9 Bl 4936,610,000/% 7T &
16,990,000 - E - BEEFE
Zom FRTE B EERK -

M U E 18 0 Quick Witk B 7
HE2017F12A31HEFE A
AEENRERFREE RS
7 B Bt 436,610,000 T & 4
16,990,000 JT °

& B E E2017F12A318 1k
FEMAR#ETT B E2017F12A8
BTHIEFEAREERERFHELE
1% H M 2 I 2N 6 (B /9 s A S 9 Bl &
#975,925,0007% 7T & #19,865,000
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs

31.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of approximately
HK$979,000. These costs have been included in “other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Identifiable assets and liabilities

The following table summarises the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the Quick Wit Group at the date of

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

¥4 6 a0

(b) Uk B AH B8 AR AN
AEEEEMNWRBEBR ALY A
979,000 7L c Z FE M A B 5F A 4R
ARZRHEMEEKERG [ EA
ERERAY -

(c) IRBEERERE

T a7 U B B HAQuick Wit
B HPEERAENQAFE-

acquisition.
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment Y- RE KRB 3
Deposits and prepayments e RFBHIE 200
Trade receivables JEWE 5 BRI 1,696
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 3,598
Trade payables BB HERER (921)
Other payables and accruals H o e 2 FE ST 3RIE (1,787)
Tax payables FERTREIR (237)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value ABRFEEBENATFE 2,552
Goodwill arising on acquisition d WBELEZEHZE
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration transferred i B 140,000
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired BRI EREFEEEN A FE (2,552)
Goodwill arising on acquisition IWEEEEZHE 137,448

Included in the goodwill of approximately HK$137,448,000
recognised above was the benefit of diversity in business,
broadening the sources of the Group’s revenues and cash flows.

il 2 ERM B E4137,448,000
BILIBEERZ TN ER  FEX
AEBEHRARIRERLR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 1.¥BKE6
(e) Net cash flows on acquisition (e) WiBzBBRERE
An analysis of cash flows in respect of the acquisition of ERBBHBRARZESRES M
subsidiaries is as follows: N
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration paid in cash BERESRE (100,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired WEEIR & RIRTTHE 3,598
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalent included FHReARSEEBYREEBE
in cash flows from investing activities EREEHZHRERE (96,402)
32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 2.LEME QT
On 25 April 2017, the Group agreed to dispose of 55% of the entire R2017F 478250 AEBREBUNRE
issued share capital of Maximus Venture Holdings Limited for a 29.08 &8 7T i & Maximus Venture
consideration of HK$29.0 million. All of the conditions precedent of the Holdings LimitedZ® 52 BTl &~ 2
disposal have been fulfilled and the completion of the disposal took 55% c ZEHE 22 LIRIEHEE K E
place on 28 June 2017. Upon completion, the Group discontinued its B - T2 T H & IR E 20176 A28H
total solutions for information security business. T o BTG AEBE R IEEE AR
TEREMRIRZER-
During the period from 1 January 2017 to 28 June 2017, the Maximus R2017F1A1H£2017F6 H28H (LA
Group contributed revenue and incurred a profit of approximately MR MaximusE B AEBNELE T
HK$7,594,000 and HK$2,295,000 respectively to the Group’s resullts. R Uiz 2 7 2 A A1 9 Bl 497,594,000 7T
2,295,000/ 7T °
(@) Consideration receivable (a) EWRE
The following table summarises the consideration receivable. TR ERNRE -
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received BURE 29,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal-related costs

()

(d)

The Group incurred disposal-related costs of approximately
HK$600,000. These costs have been included in “other
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income.

A MWK M ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

2. HEH B 2 7 =)
(b) HEMEEEKAR

REBELEHERBEREY
600,000/ JT © It & B AN B 5T A 4R
tREEREMEEARERFTHE
&R Ao

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which (c) EXREEFIRZEEREE
control was lost s s
The following table summarises the recognised amounts of TERBLM B K AESIE 2 AR E
identifiable assets and liabilities over which control is lost. ERBBEZEERESRE
HK$'000
AT
Property, plant and equipment Y- RE KRB 690
Intangible asset mEEE 1,635
Deposits and prepayments B KB HIE 282
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 3,563
Tax recoverables A Y (Bl 7 IR 122
Bank balances and cash IR{TEBR LIRS 6,813

Amount due to a former non-controlling interest

T — AT B 2 Bl 2 — R BT fE

shareholder of a former subsidiary FEIEIRE 2 AR R 2 FRIA (4,303)
Other payables and accruals H b AT K FERTRA (1,935)
Provision b i (123)
Deferred tax liabilities RIER BB E (284)
Total identifiable net assets disposed FrEr R FEERE 6,460
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries d HENBLTEE

HK$'000

AT

Consideration receivable FERARAE 29,000
Less: Net assets disposed BEHEFEE (6,460)
Less: Goodwill R (27,280)
Add: Non-controlling interests N FEIEARE A 2,907
Loss on disposal & EE (1,833)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(e) Net cash flow on disposal

2.HEMEB 27 @

() HEZERERE

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration received BEReRE 29,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed BFTHENRERREEEBWES (6,813)
Total wEat 22,187

/i

33. TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING 33.EEFERERZRX

INTERESTS

Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary
without loss of control

On 31 October 2017, Minilogic Investment Limited (“Minilogic”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, allotted shares to
a subscriber which diluted the Group’s interest in Minilogic from
100% to 60%, resulted in a deemed disposal of 40% equity interests
in Minilogic. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of this
subsidiary on the equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
during the year is summarised as follows:

BFHERKMBAR 2 E#&E (£
BREERE)

R2017F10A318  AARZEEE2E
Hf & A AIMinilogic Investment Limited
(I'Minilogic J ) M) R 8 AR E A 15 - B M
#5 7K £ @ A Minilogic 2 # 25 F1100% &
SEE60% - B HAR 1E & M Minilogicz
A0%ME - RFN  ZMB AR Z AR
BB HARABREREEEZTE
BT

HK$'000
FATT
Carrying amount of equity acquired by non-controlling eI TN e 2 BRI (B
interests (1,772)
Consideration received from non-controlling interest that ~ Zx A &G A JBAE C U315 2
attributable to owner of the Company KRB 2,040
Changes recognised within equity R TR B 268
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34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leased certain of its offices under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for office were negotiated for terms ranging
from 1 to 3 years. At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease in
respect of leased properties are payable as follows:

34.

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

EHEERE
AEFERBEEHERHHEEREE TH
RE - WAZHIBBER/IEIF - NS
MR BRETAIRELEHESENHE
EMFEZzRARREHEELNRAT

2018 2017

20185 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBT FAT

Within 1 year 14 R 2,467 2,049
After 1 year but within 5 years 1B B5F R 4,515 443
6,982 2,692

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and a warehouse in Hong Kong. Lease
payments are fixed throughout the lease term agreed. None of the
leased includes contingent rentals.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any material capital commitments as at 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

35.

REBENREIZEASEREURE
BOBRAEEURAERNNES B
ENROBREHENEREE-2HE
BETERESEAEE -

B ARERE

AREBR2018FE12 A1 B EE A E A
BARAYE (20174F 1 4) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

6. XREBMEEHMELERRE

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2 H R

The table below details the changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRENAEBEREBMEETHAEES
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. BE2EHFE PERERIIFESEG-
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash BEEHMEENABEADABRASE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s WireRERNERTIBEAREME
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing EBHEEeRENBEEREXRKRS
activities. mE e

Promissory note

AR EE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1H1H -
Acquisition of the subsidiaries Ui B BT /a8 1 A 40,000
Accumulated interest 25HHE 857
Waive of accumulated interest B REHFLE (857)
Early redemption RREE (40,000)

At 31 December 2017, at 1 January 2018 and
at 31 December 2018

2017912 A31H ~2018F1 A1H &
2018412 A31H -
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MWK M ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Key management personnel remuneration (a)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 12(b) to the
consolidated financial statements, is as follows:

HE2018F12A31B L FE

37.FAEANLTHE

FTEEBEAENHH
REEFEEBRABNME  B1F
MELRERE B R =M E12(a)FT
BEEINFARREENEER
EXMOHERGEE BRI
120 EENE T FHES
WEEMT

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Salary and other short term FehEMCHESET
employee benefits 7,636 6,949
Post-employment benefits BERL AR A 88 84
7,724 7,033
(b) Loans to related parties (b) EFHEESFHNER

TR EEHT20184F K20174F12
A31B I FEERHM B WA KTER

The following tables disclose the loan interest income and loans
advanced to related parties for the years ended 31 December

2018 and 2017:

BT BN

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Loan interest income from: RKETIETERF WA
- Key management personnel —FEZEEBEAB 647 771
— A controlling shareholder ——REREE 246 -
Loans advanced to: BETFTRIEHHER:
- Key management personnel —FEZEEBEAB 15,500 10,900
— A controlling shareholder —— BB R 11,900 -

HZE2018F12A31H L FE 8
FTHREIFNERBEERGMBE
EE AP BERIEAEIER
(20174 :3EAE1F) 3 X%
12% (20174 : 12% ) K F B R &t
B -HEERDAHRE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, loans advanced to
related parties are repayable according to repayment schedules,
with contractual maturity within 3 months to 1 year (2017:
3 months to 1 year) and bear annual interest rates is at 12%
(2017: 12%). None of the loans were neither past due nor
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
fRE B R MR ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Related party balance

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties
are set out in note 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial

(c)

37.FBEALTEHE @)

BER &R

BRAARNEEREET 2 KEEER
HBEHAREAMBRRM 26K

statements. 27 o
(d) Applicability of the GEM Listing Rules (d GEMLELTHRAHEEBEERS
relating to connected transactions R 73 A 1
None of above related party transactions falls under the BIBFGEM EMMRANF20F - B4 £
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected MEEFRGREBERSHIITE
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules. FEZXSHHWESE -
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. T A
(@) Categories of financial instruments (@ EMIENDE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REBREREF RO S @A E M
liabilities as at the end of each reporting year are as follows: BEREDENT:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKATENERMEE
— Trade receivables —EWE SRR 5,763 4,107
— Loans receivables —EWE R 98,678 135,422
— Deposit —&e 392 1,318
- Bank balances and cash —RITEBRERS 89,835 39,013
194,668 179,860
Financial liabilities: tRAas:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKATENCRBE
— Trade payables —EHESER 1,698 1,292
— Other payables and accruals —H A e R E R FRIE 6,347 5,655
— Amount due to a holder of — e — A FEE A R A
non-controlling interests BEAZHEA 1,300 -
9,345 6,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

38. €@ T A (m)
(b) BHEEREEEEREEK

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are described below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk include United States dollars (“USD”) and
Renminbi (‘RMB”). In addition, certain bank balances
of the Group are also denominated in USD. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
with respect to its foreign exchange exposure. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposures and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

AEBOEPEE S BT EER
miEER (BEEER R R X
%) FEEEBRMEBHE SRR -
o] o8 4K 35 Lk [ B B B SR R R 3 »
EIREEIE & BRI L ARE IR
KB RBRMEHEENEE-

iy E¥Eb

AEBEEEHIERR X
EEBUAMBEBNDEY
WS LA N Y O AT 8 IR
oG ERARNEES
BET(EXT)RARY
(TARY]) o b sh A EE
ZETIRTHBITIAETE
1B - A%EE B AT &R HMNE
FE. B 5T SZ NS S B K o AR
- EBREeERIMERR R
EEREREFYHhE AN
B [, B o

REBREHEHRE KA
KtENEREERERR

the end of each reporting period are as follows: EHREER T :
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT F#ET
Assets BE
usb e 1,167 1,402
RMB AR 33,223 21,591
Liabilities af&
usb EY 1,806 1,505
RMB AR 5,080 3,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange fluctuation
of the currencies of USD and RMB against the currency of
Hong Kong dollar (‘HKD”). The directors consider that the
Group’s exposure to USD does not give rise to significant
foreign currency risk on the ground that HKD is pegged
to USD. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis of USD against
the functional currency of the respective group entity is
disclosed.

A reasonably possible change of 5% in the exchange
rate between RMB and HKD would have no material
impact on the Group’s profit or loss during the reporting
periods and there would be no material impact on the
Group’s equity as at the end of each reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the end of respective reporting period for a 5% change
in the currency rate. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk in respect of RMB
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the exchange rate of HKD against RMB.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arises
primarily from its variable-rate bank deposits.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors the
Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on an ongoing basis
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.
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38. €@ T A (m)
(b) BH¥EREEEEREER

(%)
(i)

EXERE (E)
SR E T
AEBEIEATETMAR
W BT ([BT]) MoNER
BoBERA ANBTEE
TTEME AEEFAZHET
SR SNSRI R E K o A
It EERBRELLAREE
ERCNEERIBRES
17 o

AREESEBT 2 M ERT
BEH ISR R IEEE T & Y
A5 B R R4 B R A% B Bk
BEEBREATE TTSY
AEBRGHRE B R 2 &
WIBREATE - GREDW
ABEREETAARES
BEzE®BEE  MRNEAZR
& B [ R 5 1 HH 5% & fE =
CEXAZE -ERETBEEREA
BRAIMERSFBEAREZIN
B B B B 0 5% A BT R A B R%
g MREREEETEA
THBMARBEEZAEA

BB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared based
on the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s variable-
rate bank deposits at the end of each reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of these
assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of each
reporting period were outstanding for the whole period.
A 25 basis points increase or decrease in interest rates
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. The analysis has been performed on the same basis
throughout the reporting periods.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been 25 (2017: 25) basis points higher/lower in respect
of the Group’s variable-rate bank deposits and bank
overdrafts, with all other variables held constant, there
would have increased/decreased (2017: decreased/
increased) by approximately HK$63,000 (2017:
HK$15,000) on the Group’s profit/loss during the reporting
period. These are mainly attributable to Group’s exposure
to interest rate on its variable rate bank balances.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, loans receivables and bank deposits. As at 31
December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

The Group has a credit policy in place and will perform
credit evaluations on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. The Group also has an export credit
insurance with the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance
Corporation to cover risks on non-payment by customers.

A MWK M ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

38.£® T A @m
BEEREEEERBE

(b)

(&)
(i

(i)
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HIF R A £ 8 2 o] K K 4R
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H-RBEINMEBRRR S
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FBESEREERREAS
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RBREBHR WAERZA
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A EREREFELLE) K
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FERKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt regularly
to ensure that adequate allowance for impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at

31 December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
at 31 December 2018.

38. €@ T A (m)

(b) MBEAREEERERBE
(40

(i) EER (&)
AEREREEERR AEE
THEMERNE S EBHA
W Bl &8 - AR BT AL E
ZEEELRRANREER
BE-tUmE AEEZE
BERAFAEEEERR
B A I8 &K o

R2018F 12531 H #) &= = &
52 & 4F 42 % 1) 75 4%
TREHP2018F12H31H
BREASEEEERKMET
WEELERASN &S
SERR (REAEMEAE
B % R AR 3 T{E BN R A5 1Y
BR - BRITABEERHER
B) URFHEBNSE-

12-month Lifetime ECLs
ECLs Simplified

Stage 1 approach
1288 S£HBHED
FEHEEER FEEE
F-RE BERHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET
Trade receivables (Note i) FE W 5 AR R (B aEi ) - 5,763 5,763
Loans receivables (Note ii) JE W & FR (B i) 98,678 - 98,678
Financial assets included in SFAH A EUGRIE R e &
other receivable, deposits and FERENEREE
prepayments (Note iii) (B i )
— Normal ——# 1,908 - 1,908
Cash and banks balance R e MIRTTEE
— not yet past due — A AR B H 89,835 - 89,835
190,421 5,763 196,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2018 (Continued)

Notes:

(i) For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(i) For loans receivables to which the Group applies the
general approach for impairment is disclosed in note 22 to

the consolidated financial statements.

(iii) The credit quality of the financial assets included in other
receivables, deposits and prepayments is considered
to be normal when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.
Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017
The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, arises from

default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

RE B IREK M (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

38.£® T A @m

(b) HBEAREEEERBE
(40

(iy EERB (&)
R2018F 12531 H#) &= =7
B R FAERFR) SR (4E)
5T

() EREAEEEMHEE
S E R E RN B
T RERBEEEHNE
BE A RS IAN 21
B

() EREAEBEER—RIE
S R (0 B AR MR
R N S E Y
R -

(i)  FTAEMEUGRIE RS R
B RIENESREEEARB
HAWEENBERZSRE
B1E B R B ¥ 25 R AR
KigEARBERT EEE
BEESWRALEE -Gl
ZeMEENEEERWR
AATEE] -

R2017F 12531 H AT A XA
= E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e SRR (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017
(Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the Group’s
top one (2017: one) trade debtor accounted for 25.8%
(2017: 33.6%) of its total trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period. In addition, the Group’s five largest
trade debtors accounted for 86.1% and 81% of its total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
respectively.

The Group has 11 (2017: 26) loans receivables as at 31
December 2018.

The credit risk for liquid funds is limited because such
amounts are placed with various banks with good credit
ratings.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables and
loans receivables are set out in note 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The Group does not hold other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

A MWK M ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

38. €/ T A (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEREMEREBERBE
policies (Continued) (%)
(iv) Liquidity risk (iv)y RBESER
The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by the AEECERBESRYER
management of the Group. In the management of the KEBZRBESKR -EE
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level E%?ﬁ@)?/i\ﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁ KEE
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the TREFREEER AR E
management to finance the Group’s operations and to Zfﬁ(ﬁ&fﬁﬁﬁf’i%ﬁ@z
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer BAEBZEERENE H
term. HEBAERRRENEHE D
Lo
During the reporting periods, the Group financed RBEPR AEEETEER
its working capital requirements principally by funds EEEEMES RETRD
generated from operations and issue of shares. REMFLEELR
The following table details the Group’s contractual TRFNANEBRE HREH
maturities at the end of each reporting period for its REMBEZENI B
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on e TREZRESREBEZX
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on EE RReRE LUAEAEER
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to ARNFONEFEBHAEER
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash BoRANBIEMNBREEMNER
flows. EME
Repayable on
demand or Between Total
within Between 3monthsto  undiscounted Carrying
1 month 1-3 months 1 year cash flows amount
R-H8A -fRZ =fERZE FEBBRE
nEE =f8A -& RES RESE
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TET TER TAET
As at 31 December 2018 20185124310
Trade and other payables RRE 5 REMERRR 8,045 - - 8,045 8,045
Amount due to a holder of B —fEnREs
non-controling interest BAEANZARE 1,300 - - 1,300 1,300
9,345 - - 9,345 9,345
As at 31 December 2017 ®2017512A31A
Trade and other payables EREZREMENER 6,947 = = 6,947 6,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e SRR (B)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE2018F12A31B L FE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group financial instruments are
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2018.

40. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated.
Further details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in
note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
RE B IREK M (B)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

HE2018F12A31B L FE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41.7F& 2 7] Z Bt B Ak R &

THE COMPANY

BRARRNHEFEROMBAT KA

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting year is as follows:

BRnT

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E FET FHET
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VBB REE 2 16
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR KEE 1 150,000 150,000
Total non-current assets BWHERBEE 150,002 150,016
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NS NGIE @ 113,269 118,353
Deposits and prepayments & RBENFKIE - 42
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS 1,532 1,483
Total current assets HEREEE 114,801 119,878
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals H it e K FEET 5RIE 177 885
Total current liabilities BhREBAE 177 885
Net current assets BREBEE 114,624 118,993
Net assets FEE 264,626 269,009
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital & < 32(a) 139,778 139,778
Reserves (R 32(b)(i) 124,848 129,231
Total equity EREE 264,626 269,009

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by FHIMERC N2019F3A22HEE =SS

the board of directors on 22 March 2019 and signed on its behalf by: HERBETE YHTINESREE
2
ZHANG Qing SUNG Tak Wing Leo
RE KRG
Director Director
EE EF
42. AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE OF THE 42 RETBEEMBHREK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEE 20 N2019F3 228 #L W X #E
FIBGRETBHRE -

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019.
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SUMMARY OF FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION
LEMBENBE

The following is a summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate:

RESULTS

LEE - BEENBEME:

Ey

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

MTRBEETRRERMBRREERE
B/ EBHBRZASEBERLAYRFE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 20164 20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET FHET FET FET
Continuing operations BREREEK
Revenue Wz 76,328 75,925 50,920 29,244 52,136
Profit/(loss) for the year from 4 2R B #5 A8 48 & 575
continuing operations mEF, (E18) 14,521 9,865 6,827 (8,858) (7,690)
Discontinued operation BRIEREEKE
Profit from discontinued REDRIEEEER
operation Eopinkl - 462 3,765 - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREF (BE) 14,521 10,327 10,592 (8,858) (7,690)
Earnings/(Loss) per share BRAEFR, (EE)
(HK cents) @z 101) 1.11 0.70 0.64 (1.87) (2.25)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 20164 20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET T T FHET FHET
Total assets BWEE 340,828 325,424 313,143 286,762 79,125
Total liabilities weE 14,036 12,083 11,208 2,161 4,048
Net assets BEFE 326,792 313,341 301,935 284,601 75,077
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